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PART I

ltem 1. BUSINESS

General

Company Background. Barrett Business Services, Inc. (“BBSI,” the “Company,” “our” or “we”), is a leading provider of business
management solutions for small-and mid-sized companies. The Company has developed a management platform that integrates a knowledge-
based approach from the management consulting industry with tools from the human resource outsourcing industry. This platform, through the
effective leveraging of human capital, assists our business owner clients in more effectively running their business. We believe this platform,
delivered through a decentralized organizational structure, differentiates BBSI from our competitors. BBS| was incorporated in Maryland in 1965.

Business Strategy. Our strategy is to align local operations teams with the mission of small and mid-sized business owners, driving
value to their business. To do so, BBSI:

. partners with business owners to leverage their investment in human capital through a high-touch, results-oriented approach;
. brings predictability to each client organization through a three-tiered management platform; and
. enables business owners to focus on their core business by reducing organizational complexity and maximizing productivity.

Business Organization. We operate a decentralized delivery model using locally based teams, typically located within 50 miles of our
client companies. We recruit senior level managers to oversee, develop and expand our business at the branch-office level. Additionally, we recruit
professionals with expertise in human resources, risk management and workplace safety and various types of administration, including payroll, to
field our client delivery teams. This structure fosters autonomous decision-making, allowing local teams of professionals to deliver plans that most
closely align with the needs of each business owner client. It also assists us by incubating talent to support increased growth and capacity. We
have clients with employees located in 22 states and the District of Columbia, through a network of 54 branch locations in California, Oregon,
Washington, Idaho, Arizona, Nevada, Utah, Colorado, Maryland, Delaware and North Carolina. We also have several smaller recruiting locations in
our general market areas, which are under the direction of a branch office.

BBSI believes that making significant investments in the best talent available allows us to leverage the value of this investment
many times over. We motivate our management employees through a compensation package that includes a competitive base salary and the
opportunity for profit sharing. At the branch level, profit sharing is in direct correlation to client performance, reinforcing a culture focused on
achievement of client goals.

Services Overview. BBSI’s core purpose is to advocate for business owners, particularly in the small-and mid-sized business
segment. Our evolution from an entrepreneurially run company to a professionally managed organization has helped to form
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our view that all businesses experience inflection points at key stages of growth. The insights gained through our own growth, along with the trends
we see in working with more than 3,000 companies each day, define our approach to guiding business owners through the challenges associated
with being an employer.

BBSI’s business teams align with each business owner client through a structured three-tiered progression. In doing so, business
teams focus on the objectives of each business owner and deliver planning, guidance and resources in support of those objectives.

Tier 1: Tactical Alignment

The first stage focuses on the mutual setting of expectations and is essential to a successful client relationship. It begins with a
process of assessment and discovery in which the business owners’ business objectives, attitudes, and culture are aligned with BBSI’s
processes, controls and culture. This stage includes an implementation process, which addresses the administrative components of employment.

Tier 2: Dynamic Relationship
The second stage of the relationship emphasizes organizational development as a means of achieving each client’s business
objectives. There is a focus on process improvement, development of best practices, supervisor training and leadership development.

Tier 3: Strategic Counsel
With an emphasis on advocacy on behalf of the business owner, the third stage of the relationship is more strategic and forward-
looking with a goal of cultivating an environment in which all efforts are directed by the mission and long-term objectives of the business owner.

In addition to serving as resource and guide, BBSI has the ability to provide workers’ compensation coverage as a means of meeting
statutory requirements and protecting our clients from employment-related injury claims. Through our internal claims managers and our third-party
administrators, we provide claims management services for our co-employed clients. We work aggressively to manage and reduce job injury
claims, identify fraudulent claims and structure optimal work programs, including modified duty employees.

Categories of Services

We report financial results in two categories of services: Professional Employer Services (PEO) and Staffing. During 2014, we
supported in excess of 3,600 PEO clients and approximately 129,000 employees. This compares to more than 3,200 PEO clients and
approximately 111,000 employees during 2013. See Iltem 7 of this Report for information regarding the percentages of total net revenues provided
by our PEO and staffing services for each of the last three fiscal years.

PEO. We enter into a client services agreement to establish a co-employment relationship with each client company, assuming
responsibility for payroll, payroll taxes, workers’ compensation coverage and certain other administrative functions for the client’s existing
workforce. The client maintains physical care, custody and control of their workforce, including the authority to hire and terminate employees.

-3-



Table of Contents

Staffing and Recruiting. Our staffing services include on-demand or short-term staffing assignments, contract staffing, long-term or
indefinite-term on-site management, and direct placement. Our recruiting experts maintain a deep network of professionals from which we source
candidates. Through an assessment process, we gain an understanding of the short-and long-term needs of our clients, allowing us to identify and
source the right talent for each position. We then conduct a rigorous screening process to help ensure a successful hire.

Clients and Client Contracts

Our business is typically characterized by long-term relationships that result in recurring revenue. Our client relationships are codified
in a client services agreement, which typically provides for an initial term of one year with renewal for additional one-year periods but generally
permits cancellation by either party upon 30 days’ written notice. In addition, we may terminate the agreement at any time for specified breach of
contract, including nonpayment or failure to follow our workplace safety recommendations. Our annual client retention rate is in excess of 90%. We
do not include clients we have terminated in our retention calculation.

The client services agreement also provides for indemnification of us by the client against losses arising out of any default by the
client under the agreement, including failure to comply with any employment-related, health and safety, or immigration laws or regulations. Our
client service agreement requires clients in a co-employment arrangement to maintain comprehensive liability coverage in the amount of $1.0
million for acts of their employees. Although no claims exceeding such policy limits have been paid by us to date, the possibility exists that claims
for amounts in excess of sums available to us through indemnification or insurance may be asserted in the future, which could adversely affect
profitability.

We have client services agreements with a diverse array of customers, including among others, electronics manufacturers, various
light-manufacturing industries, agriculture-based companies, transportation and shipping enterprises, food processing, telecommunications, public
utilities, general contractors in various construction-related fields, and professional services firms. None of our clients individually represented
more than 1% of our total revenues in 2014.

Market Opportunity

As a company that aligns with the mission of business owners by providing resources and guidance to small and mid-size
businesses, BBSI believes its growth is driven by the desire of business owners to focus on mission-critical functions, reduce complexity
associated with the employment function, mitigate costs and maximize the investment in human capital. Our integrated management platform has
enabled us to capitalize on these needs within the small to mid-size business sector.

The small and mid-sized business segment is particularly attractive because:
. it is large, continues to grow and remains underserved by professional services companies;
. it typically has fewer in-house resources than larger businesses and, as a result, is generally more dependent on external resources;
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. we generally experience a relatively high client retention rate and lower client acquisition costs within this market segment; and

. we have found that small to mid-size businesses are responsive to quality of service, ease-of-use, and responsiveness to clients’
needs when selecting a PEO or staffing services provider.

Competition

The business environment in which we operate is characterized by intense competition and fragmentation. BBSI is not aware of
reliable statistics regarding the number of its competitors, but certain large, well-known companies typically compete with us in the same markets
and also have greater financial and marketing resources than we do, including Automatic Data Processing, Inc., Manpower, Inc., Kelly Services,
Inc., Insperity, Inc., TriNet, Group, Inc. and Paychex, Inc. We may face additional competition in the future from new entrants to the field,
including other staffing services companies, payroll processing companies and insurance companies. The principal competitive factors in the
business environment in which we operate are price and level of service.

We believe that our growth is attributable to our ability to provide small and mid-sized companies with the resources and knowledge
base of a large employer delivered through a local operations team. Our level of integration with each client business provides us an additional
competitive advantage.

Sales and Marketing

We believe our clients are our best advocates and powerful drivers of our brand awareness. We support our clients and foster
advocacy through branch-based business teams. As such, sales and marketing efforts are led by area managers who lead teams responsible for
client delivery and retention. Each integrated team is comprised of a client-facing Business Partner, HR Consultant, Risk Management Consultant,
a Payroll Specialist and in some instances, a Recruiting Specialist. By developing business teams in our existing branches, we expect to see
incremental growth in the markets where we currently do business, driven by our reputation and client referrals. BBSI’s business development is
the primary function of our area managers, and is focused on branch-level development of local business relationships. In some markets, our
sales efforts are further supported by Business Development Managers.

On a regional and national level, we seek to expand and align our services to meet business demand, which may include opening
additional offices to better support a client’s geographic needs, or adding new business teams within an existing branch location. We believe our
business teams serve a dual purpose: 1) Delivering high-quality guidance to our clients, thereby supporting client business growth and driving
client referrals, and 2) Incubating talent at the branch level to support expansion into new markets.

Our business growth has three sources: referrals from existing clients, direct business-to-business sales efforts by our area
managers, and an extensive referral network. Our referral partners include insurance brokers, financial advisors, attorneys, CPA’s, and other
business professionals who can facilitate an introduction to prospective clients. These partners, typically in exchange for a fee equal to a small
percentage of payroll, facilitate introductions to business owners on our behalf.
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Growth Strategy
Our growth strategy is focused in the following areas:

. Support, strengthen and expand branch office operations through the ongoing development of business units. We believe that
strengthening and expanding the operations of each location is an efficient and effective means of increasing market share in the
geographic areas in which we do business. Because we understand that successful and satisfied client companies are a powerful
driver of brand awareness, we focus on creating and expanding business units within each branch that provide tactical and strategic
guidance to our client base. As our presence in each market grows through the addition of branch business units, we believe market
awareness of our reputation and services increases.

. Enhance management information systems. We continue to invest in developing our information technology infrastructure, particularly
in systems that allow increased engagement between our clients and their supporting business teams. We believe that this approach
gives us a competitive advantage by allowing us to provide a high level of interaction with our small and medium-sized business
clients on a cost-effective basis. Furthermore, we believe that our current technology platform is capable of supporting our planned
development of new business units for the foreseeable future.

. Penetrate new markets. We intend to open additional branch offices in new geographic markets as opportunities arise. We have
developed a well-defined approach to geographic expansion, which will serve as a guide for entering new markets. We believe our
decentralized organizational model built on teams of senior-level professionals allows us to incubate talent as we expand into new
markets.

Workers’ Compensation

Through our client services agreement, we have the ability to provide workers’ compensation coverage to our clients. We provide this
coverage through a variety of methods, all of which are subject to rigorous underwriting to assess financial stability, risk factors and cultural
alignment related to safety and the client’s desire to improve their operations. In providing this coverage, we are responsible for complying with
applicable statutory requirements for workers’ compensation coverage. Additionally, risk mitigation is an important contributor to our principal goal
of helping business owners operate their business more efficiently. It is in the mutual interests of the client and BBSI to commit to workplace
safety and risk mitigation.

Elements of Workers’ Compensation System. State law (and for certain types of employees, federal law) generally mandates that an
employer reimburse its employees for the costs of medical care and other specified benefits for injuries or illnesses, including catastrophic injuries
and fatalities, incurred in the course and scope of employment. The benefits payable for various categories of claims are determined by state
regulation and vary with the severity and nature of the injury or illness and other specified factors. In return for this guaranteed protection, workers’
compensation is an exclusive remedy and employees are generally precluded from seeking other damages from their employer for workplace
injuries. Most states require employers to maintain workers’ compensation insurance or otherwise
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demonstrate financial responsibility to meet workers’ compensation obligations to employees. In many states, employers who meet certain
financial and other requirements are permitted to self-insure. See “Regulatory and Legislative Issues” below for a discussion of recent
developments in California.

Self Insurance for Workers’ Compensation. In August 1987, we became a self-insured employer for workers’ compensation coverage
in Oregon. We subsequently obtained self-insured employer status for workers’ compensation in California, Delaware, Maryland and Colorado, as
well as in Washington for our staffing and management employees. Regulations governing self-insured employers in each jurisdiction typically
require the employer to maintain surety bonds, surety deposits of government securities, letters of credit or other financial instruments to cover
workers’ claims in the event the employer is unable to pay for such claims. Effective January 1, 2015, BBSI no longer maintains a certificate to
self-insure in the state of California, and now maintains individual policies for all California-based clients. See “Regulatory and Legislative Issues”
below for a discussion of recent developments in California.

To manage our financial exposure to catastrophic injuries and fatalities, we maintain excess workers’ compensation insurance
coverage. Our wholly owned, fully licensed captive insurance company incorporated in Arizona, Associated Insurance Company for Excess
(“AICE”), provides us with excess workers’ compensation coverage from $1.0 million up to $5.0 million per occurrence in the states of Oregon,
California, Delaware and Washington. Additional excess workers’ compensation insurance coverage is provided through annual policies issued by
ACE Group (“ACE”) from $5.0 million to $15.0 million per occurrence, except for our Maryland and Colorado operations.

Our excess insurance policy in Maryland has a $1.0 million retention with a $25.0 million limit and our excess insurance policy in
Colorado has a $2.0 million retention and statutory limits on a per occurrence basis. This approach results in an effective per occurrence retention,
on a consolidated basis, of $5.0 million. This higher per occurrence retention may result in higher workers’ compensation costs to us with a
corresponding negative effect on our operating results. AICE provides us with access to an alternative mechanism for excess insurance coverage,
as well as certain income tax benefits arising from the ability to accelerate the deduction, for tax purposes, of certain accruals for workers’
compensation claims.

Additionally, we formed Ecole Insurance Company, a wholly owned fully licensed insurance company in Arizona (“Ecole”), to provide
workers’ compensation coverage to our employees working in Arizona, beginning with claims occurring on or after March 1, 2010. Additional
reinsurance coverage for Ecole is provided by ACE from $5.0 million to statutory limits per occurrence.

Claims Management. As a self-insured employer, our workers’ compensation expense is tied directly to the incidence and severity of
workplace injuries to our employees. We seek to contain our workers’ compensation costs through an aggressive approach to claims
management. We use managed-care systems to reduce medical costs and keep time-loss costs to a minimum by assigning injured workers,
whenever possible, to short-term assignments which accommodate the workers’ physical limitations. We believe that these
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assignments minimize both time actually lost from work and covered time-loss costs. We employ internal, professionally licensed claims adjusters
and engage third-party claims administrators (“TPAs”) to provide the principal claims management expertise. Typical management procedures
include performing thorough and prompt on-site investigations of claims filed by employees, working with physicians to encourage efficient medical
management of cases, denying questionable claims and attempting to negotiate early settlements to eliminate future development of claims costs.
We also maintain a corporate-wide pre-employment drug screening program and a mandatory post-injury drug test. The program is believed to have
resulted in a reduction in the frequency of fraudulent claims and in accidents in which the use of illegal drugs appears to have been a contributing
factor.

Elements of Self-Insurance Costs. The costs associated with our self-insured workers’ compensation program include case reserves
for reported claims, an additional expense provision for potential future increases in the cost of open injury claims (known as “adverse loss
development”) and claims incurred in prior periods but not reported (referred to as “IBNR”), fees payable to our TPAs, additional claims
administration expenses, administrative fees payable to state workers’ compensation regulatory agencies, legal fees, fees paid for business
referrals, premiums for excess workers’ compensation insurance, and costs associated with forming and operating our wholly owned, fully licensed
captive insurance company for excess coverage. The state assessments are typically based on payroll amounts and, to a limited extent, the
amount of permanent disability awards during the previous year. Excess insurance premiums are also based in part on the size and risk profile of
our payroll and loss experience.

Changes to Self-Insurance in California. In September 2012, California Senate Bill 863 (“SB 863”), was signed into law. Under SB
863, the California Director of Self-Insurance was required not to issue certificates of consent to self-insure after January 1, 2013, to any employer
engaged in the activities of a professional employer organization, a leasing employer, a temporary services employer or any employer the Director
determines to be in the business of providing employees to other employers. Additionally, the Director was required to revoke any previously
issued certificate of consent to self-insure in favor of any employer engaged in these types of activities not later than January 1, 2015. To address
this issue, in February 2014, BBSI entered into an arrangement typically known as a “fronted” program with ACE. Under this arrangement, the risk
of loss up to the first $5.0 million per claim is retained by BBSI through an indemnity agreement, although ACE will be responsible for any claims
BBSI is unable to satisfy. In addition, ACE continues to be BBSI’s carrier for costs in excess of $5.0 million per claim. During 2014, we
transitioned all California-based clients and their employees to ACE policies prior to December 31, 2014 in compliance with SB 863. During 2015,
we expect to incur increased costs associated with the fronted insurance program, as 2015 will represent the first full year of complete coverage.

Workers’ Compensation Claims Experience and Reserves

We recognize our liability for the ultimate payment of incurred claims and claims adjustment expenses by accruing liabilities which
represent estimates of future amounts necessary to pay claims and related expenses with respect to covered events that have occurred. When a
claim involving a probable loss is reported, our internal claims management personnel or our TPA establishes a case reserve for the estimated
amount of ultimate loss. The estimate reflects an informed judgment based on established case reserving practices
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and the experience and knowledge of our claims management staff and the TPA regarding the nature and expected amount of the claim, as well
as the estimated expenses of settling the claim, including legal and other fees and expenses of claims administration. The adequacy of such case
reserves in part depends on the professional judgment of both our claims management staff and our TPA to properly and comprehensively
evaluate the economic consequences of each claim. Our reserves include an additional component for both estimated future adverse loss
development in excess of initial case reserves on open claims and for incurred but not reported claims (together IBNR) based upon actuarial
estimates provided by the Company’s independent actuary. Our reserves do not include an estimated provision for the incidence of unknown or
unreported catastrophic claims.

As part of the case reserving process, historical data is reviewed and consideration is given to the anticipated effect of various
factors, including known and anticipated legal developments, inflation and economic conditions. Reserve amounts are based on management’s
estimates, and as other data becomes available, these estimates are revised, which may result in increases or decreases in existing case
reserves. Management’s internal accrual process for workers’ compensation expense is based upon the immediate recognition of an expense and
the related liability at the time a claim occurs; the value ascribed to the expense and liability is based upon our internal claims management and
the TPAs’ estimate of ultimate claim cost coupled with a provision for estimated future development based upon an actuarial review performed by
our independent actuary. We believe our total accrued workers’ compensation claims liabilities at December 31, 2014 are adequate. It is possible,
however, that our actual future workers’ compensation obligations may exceed the amount of our accrued liabilities, with a corresponding negative
effect on future earnings, due to such factors as unanticipated adverse loss development of known claims and, to a much lesser extent, of claims
incurred but not reported.

Failure to successfully manage the severity and frequency of workplace injuries would result in increased workers’ compensation
expense and would have a negative effect, which may be substantial, on our operating results and financial condition. BBS| maintains clear
guidelines for our area managers and risk management consultants, directly tying their continued employment to their diligence in understanding
and addressing the risks of accident or injury associated with the industries in which client companies operate and in monitoring clients’
compliance with workplace safety requirements. We have a policy of “zero tolerance” for avoidable workplace injuries. Each of our risk
management consultants has the authority to cancel any client at any time based upon their assessment of their safe-work practices or
philosophies.

Employees and Employee Benefits

At December 31, 2014, we had approximately 93,040 total employees, including approximately 10,280 staffing services employees,
approximately 82,400 employees under our client service agreements, 515 managerial, sales and administrative employees, and 4 executive
officers. The number of employees at any given time may vary significantly due to business conditions at customer or client companies.
Substantially all of our managerial, sales and administrative employees have entered into a standard form of employment agreement which, among
other provisions, contains covenants not to engage in certain activities in competition with us for 18 months following termination of employment
and to maintain the confidentiality of certain proprietary information. We believe our employee relations are good.
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We offer various qualified employee benefit plans to our employees, including those employees for whom we are the administrative
employer in a co-employment agreement who so elect. These qualified employee benefit plans include our 401(k) plan to which employees may
begin making contributions upon reaching 21 years of age and completing 1,000 hours of service in any consecutive 12-month period. We may
also make contributions to the 401(k) plan, which vest over six years and are subject to certain legal limits, at the sole discretion of our Board of
Directors.

We make matching contributions to the 401(k) plan under a safe harbor provision, whereby we match 100% of contributions by
management and staffing employees to the 401(k) plan up to 3% of each participating employee’s annual compensation and 50% of the
employee’s contributions up to an additional 2% of annual compensation. We also offer a cafeteria plan under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue
Code; and group health, life insurance and disability insurance plans. Generally, qualified employee benefit plans are subject to provisions of both
the Internal Revenue Code and the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”). In order to qualify for favorable tax treatment
under the Internal Revenue Code, qualified plans must be established and maintained by an employer for the exclusive benefit of its employees.

Regulatory and Legislative Issues

Business Operations. We are subject to the laws and regulations of the jurisdictions within which we operate, including those
governing self-insured employers under the workers’ compensation systems in Oregon, Maryland, Delaware and Colorado, as well as in
Washington for staffing and management employees. As a result of legislation in California related to our self-insurance program, we transitioned
out of self-insurance in California during 2014 into an insured program with ACE. During the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company received
confirmation from the Office of Self Insured Plans that BBSI was in full compliance with all regulatory collateral requirements for California self-
insurance. See “Workers’ Compensation-Changes in Self-Insurance in California” above. We are also subject to laws and regulations governing our
two wholly owned, fully licensed insurance companies in Arizona. While the specific laws and regulations vary among these jurisdictions, they
typically require some form of licensing and often have statutory requirements for workplace safety and notice of change in obligation of workers’
compensation coverage in the event of contract termination. Although compliance with these requirements imposes some additional financial risk
on us, particularly with respect to those clients who breach their payment obligation to us, such compliance has not had a material adverse effect
on our business to date.

Employee Benefit Plans. Our operations are affected by numerous federal and state laws relating to labor, tax and employment
matters. Through our client services agreement, we assume certain obligations and responsibilities as the administrative employer under federal
and state laws. Because many of these federal and state laws were enacted prior to the development of nontraditional employment relationships,
such as professional employer, temporary employment, and outsourcing arrangements, many of these laws do not specifically address the
obligations and responsibilities of nontraditional employers. In addition, the definition of “employer” under these laws is not uniform.
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As an employer, we are subject to all federal statutes and regulations governing our employer-employee relationships. Subject to the
discussion of risk factors below, we believe that our operations are in compliance in all material respects with applicable federal statutes and
regulations.

Additional Information

Our filings with the SEC, including our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, periodic reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to these reports, are accessible free of charge at our website at http://www.barrettbusiness.com as soon as reasonably practicable
after filing with the SEC. By making this reference to our website, we do not intend to incorporate into this report any information contained in the
website. The website should not be considered part of this report.

The SEC maintains a website at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information
regarding issuers with publicly traded securities, including the Company.

ltem 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to other information contained in this report, the following risk factors should be considered carefully in evaluating our
business.

Our workers’ compensation loss reserves may be inadequate to cover our ultimate liability for workers’ compensation costs.

We maintain reserves (recorded as accrued liabilities on our balance sheet) to cover our estimated liabilities for our workers’
compensation claims under our insurance arrangement with ACE in California, our self-insured status in Oregon, Delaware, Maryland and Colorado
and our captive insurance subsidiary Ecole in Arizona. The determination of these reserves is based upon a number of factors, including current
and historical claims activity, claims payment patterns and medical cost trends and developments in existing claims. Accordingly, reserves do not
represent an exact calculation of liability. Reserves may be affected by both internal and external events, such as adverse developments on
existing claims or changes in medical costs, medical condition of the claimant, claims handling procedures, administrative costs and legal fees,
inflation, and legal trends and legislative changes. Reserves are adjusted from time to time to reflect new claims, claim developments, or systemic
changes, and such adjustments are reflected in the results of the periods in which the reserves are changed Our revenues include an additional
component for both estimated future adverse loss development in excess of initial case reserves on open claims and for incurred but not reported
claims based upon actuarial estimates provided by the Company’s independent actuary The estimated accrual does not include an estimated
provision for the incidence of unknown catastrophic claims. Moreover, because of the uncertainties that surround estimating workers’
compensation loss reserves, we cannot be certain that our reserves are adequate. If our reserves are insufficient to cover our actual losses, we
would have to increase our reserves and incur charges to our earnings that could be material to our results of operations and financial condition.
See “Item 1. Business — Workers’ Compensation” above for additional information.
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Our retention for workers’ compensation claims is $5.0 million per occurrence under our insurance arrangement with ACE in California
as well as in the majority of our self-insured states.

In view of the Company'’s favorable historical experience with large catastrophic claims and an opportunity to realize savings from
lower excess workers’ compensation insurance premiums, we maintain our retention at $5.0 million per occurrence, except in Colorado and
Maryland where our retention is at $2.0 million and $1.0 million per occurrence, respectively. Additionally, Ecole’s retention is at $5.0 million per
occurrence for coverage in Arizona. Thus, the Company has financial risk for most workers’ compensation claims under $5.0 million, on a per
occurrence basis. This level of per occurrence retention may result in higher workers’ compensation costs to us with a corresponding negative
effect on our operating results and financial condition.

Adverse developments in the market for excess workers’ compensation insurance could lead to increases in our costs.

We are a state-approved self-insured employer for workers’ compensation coverage in Oregon, Delaware, Maryland and Colorado, as
well as in Washington for our staffing and management employees. To manage our financial exposure in the event of catastrophic injuries or
fatalities, we maintain excess workers’ compensation insurance with a per occurrence retention of $5.0 million effective January 1, 2007, except in
Colorado and Maryland where our retention is at $2.0 million and $1.0 million per occurrence, respectively. Additionally, Ecole’s retention is at $5.0
million per occurrence for coverage in Arizona. Changes in the market for excess workers’ compensation insurance may lead to limited availability
of such coverage, additional increases in our insurance costs or further increases in our self-insured retention, any of which may have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition.

Our ability to continue our business operations in California is dependent on maintaining workers’ compensation insurance coverage.

We recently renewed our workers’ compensation insurance arrangement with ACE for our employees in California. The annual renewal
extends through February 1, 2016, with the possibility of additional annual renewals. If ACE is unwilling or unable to renew our arrangement in the
future, we would need to seek alternative coverage. If replacement coverage were unavailable or available only on significantly less favorable
terms, our business and results of operations would be materially adversely affected.

Our business is subject to risks associated with geographic market concentration.

Our California operations accounted for approximately 77% of our total net revenues in 2014. As a result of the current importance of
our California operations and anticipated continued growth from these operations, our profitability over the next several years is expected to be
largely dependent on economic and regulatory conditions in California. If California experiences an economic downturn, or if the regulatory
environment changes in a way that adversely affects our ability to do business or limits our competitive advantages, our profitability and growth
prospects may be materially and adversely affected.
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Economic conditions, particularly in California, may impact our ability to attract new clients and cause our existing clients to reduce
staffing levels or cease operations.

Weak economic conditions typically have a negative impact on small-and mid-sized businesses, which make up the majority of our
clients. In turn, these businesses could cut costs, including timming employees from their payrolls, or ceasing operations altogether. These
forces may result in decreased revenues due both to the downsizing of our current clients and difficulties in attracting new clients, and may also
result in additional bad debt expense to the extent that existing clients cease operations.

We may be unable to draw on our revolving credit facility in the future.

As discussed in more detail in Note 7 to the audited consolidated financial statements included in Item 15 of this Report, we maintain
a credit agreement (the “Agreement”) with our principal bank, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (the “Bank”). The Agreement, which expires
October 1, 2017, provides for a revolving credit facility with a borrowing capacity of up to $14.0 million at December 31, 2014, to be used to
finance working capital; there was no outstanding balance at that date. The Agreement also provides a term loan in the principal amount of $40.0
million maturing December 31, 2016, which we used to fund our workers’ compensation insurance reserves at December 31, 2014, as well as a
standby letter of credit agreement providing for a total of approximately $114.0 million in cash-secured letters of credit and a term loan with a
balance of approximately $5.1 million secured by our company office building in Vancouver, Washington.

If our business does not perform as expected, including if we generate less revenue than anticipated from our operations or encounter
significant unexpected costs, we may fail to comply with the financial covenants under our credit facilities. If we do not comply with our financial
covenants and we do not obtain a waiver or amendment from the Bank, the Bank may elect to cause all amounts owed to become immediately
due and payable. In this event, we would seek to establish a replacement credit facility with one or more other lenders, including lenders with
which we have an existing relationship, potentially at less desirable terms. There can be no guarantee that replacement financing would be
available at commercially reasonable terms, if at all. Any of these risks and uncertainties could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial position, results of operations, and working capital.

If we are unable to maintain our brand image and corporate reputation, our business may suffer.

Our success depends in part on our ability to maintain our reputation for providing excellent service to our customers. Service quality
issues, actual or perceived, even when false or unfounded, could tarnish the image of our brand and may cause customers to use other
companies. Also, adverse publicity surrounding labor relations, data breaches, securities class actions, and the like, or attempts to connect our
Company to these types of issues, could negatively affect our overall reputation. Damage to our reputation could reduce demand for our services
and thus have an adverse effect on our business, financial position and results of operations.
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Our staffing business is vulnerable to economic fluctuations.

Demand for our staffing services is sensitive to changes in the level of economic activity in the regions in which we do business. As
economic activity slows down, companies often reduce their use of temporary employees before undertaking layoffs of permanent staff, resulting
in decreased demand for staffing services. During strong economic periods, on the other hand, we often experience shortages of qualified
employees to meet customer needs.

Because we assume the obligation to make wage, tax and regulatory payments in respect of some employees, we are exposed to client
credit risks.

We generally assume responsibility for and manage the risks associated with our clients’ employee payroll obligations, including
liability for payment of salaries and wages (including payroll taxes), as well as group health and retirement benefits. These obligations are fixed,
whether or not the client makes payments to us as required by our services agreement, which exposes us to credit risks. We attempt to mitigate
this risk by invoicing our clients at the end of their specific payroll processing cycle. We also carefully monitor the timeliness of our clients’
payments and impose strict credit standards on our customers. If we fail to successfully manage our credit risk, our results of operations and
financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.

Increases in unemployment claims could raise our state and federal unemployment tax rates which we may not be able to pass on to our
customers.

During weak economic conditions in our markets, the level of unemployment claims tend to rise as a result of employee layoffs at our
clients and lack of work in our temporary staffing pool. The rise in unemployment claims often results in higher state and federal unemployment
tax rates which in most instances cannot be concurrently passed on to our customers either due to existing client services agreements or
competitive pricing pressures. Increases in our state and federal unemployment tax rates could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations, particularly in the early part of the calendar year when effective payroll tax rates are at or near their maximum.

If we are determined not to be an “employer” under certain laws and regulations, our clients may stop using our services, and we may
be subject to additional liabilities.

We are the administrative employer in our co-employment relationships under the various laws and regulations of the Internal
Revenue Service and the U.S. Department of Labor. If we are determined not to be the administrative employer under such laws and regulations
and are therefore unable to assume our clients’ obligations for employment and other taxes, our clients may be held jointly and severally liable for
payment of such taxes. Some clients or prospective clients may view such potential liability as an unacceptable risk, discouraging current clients
from continuing a relationship with us or prospective clients from entering into a new relationship with us. Any determination that we are not the
administrative employer for purposes of ERISA could adversely affect our cafeteria benefits plan operated under Section 125 of the Internal
Revenue Code and result in liabilities to us under the plan.
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We may be exposed to employment-related claims and costs and periodic litigation that could adversely affect our business and results
of operations.

We either co-employ employees in connection with our client services agreements or place our employees in our customers’
workplace in connection with our staffing business. As such, we are subject to a number of risks inherent to our status as the administrative
employer, including without limitation:

. claims of misconduct or negligence on the part of our employees, discrimination or harassment claims against our employees, or
claims by our employees of discrimination or harassment by our clients;

. immigration-related claims;

. claims relating to violations of wage, hour and other workplace regulations;

. claims relating to employee benefits, entitiements to employee benefits, or errors in the calculation or administration of such benefits;
and

. possible claims relating to misuse of customer confidential information, misappropriation of assets or other similar claims.

If we experience significant incidents involving any of the above-described risk areas we could face substantial out-of-pocket losses,
fines or negative publicity. In addition, such claims may give rise to litigation, which may be time consuming, distracting and costly, and could
have a material adverse effect on our business. With respect to claims involving our co-employer relationships, although our client services
agreement provides that the client will indemnify us for any liability attributable to the conduct of the client or its employees, we may not be able to
enforce such contractual indemnification, or the client may not have sufficient assets to satisfy its obligations to us.

We are dependent upon technology services and if we experience damage, service interruptions or failures in our computer and
telecommunications systems, our client relationships and our ability to attract new clients may be adversely affected.

We rely extensively on our computer systems to manage our branch network, perform employment-related services, accounting and
reporting, and summarize and analyze our financial results. Our systems are subject to damage or interruption from telecommunications failures,
power-related outages, computer viruses and malicious attacks, security breaches and catastrophic events. If our systems are damaged or fail to
function properly, we may incur substantial costs to repair or replace them, experience loss of critical data and interruptions or delays in our ability
to manage our operations, and encounter a loss of client confidence. In addition, our clients’ businesses may be adversely affected by any system
or equipment failure or breach we experience. As a result, our relationships with our clients may be impaired, we may lose clients, our ability to
attract new clients may be adversely affected and we could be exposed to contractual liability. We may invest in upgrades or replacements to our
existing systems or additional security measures, each of which can involve substantial costs and risks relating to installation and implementation.
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If our efforts to protect the security of personal information about our employees and clients are unsuccessful, we could be subject to
costly government enforcement actions and private litigation and our reputation could suffer.

The nature of our business involves the receipt, storage, and transmission of personal and proprietary information about thousands of
employees and some clients. If we experience a significant data security breach or fail to detect and appropriately respond to a significant data
security breach, we could be exposed to government enforcement actions and private litigation. In addition, our employees and clients could lose
confidence in our ability to protect their personal and proprietary information, which could cause them to terminate their relationships with us. Any
loss of confidence arising from a significant data security breach could hurt our reputation, further damaging our business.

We operate in a complex regulatory environment, and failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations could adversely affect our
business.

Corporate human resource operations are subject to a broad range of complex and evolving laws and regulations, including those
applicable to payroll practices, benefits administration, employment practices and privacy. Because our clients have employees in many states
throughout the United States, we must perform our services in compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements of multiple jurisdictions.
Some of these laws and regulations may be difficult to ascertain or interpret and may change from time to time. Violation of such laws and
regulations could subject us to fines and penalties, damage our reputation, constitute a breach of our client agreements, impair our ability to obtain
and renew required licenses, and decrease our profitability or competitiveness. If any of these effects were to occur, our operating results and
financial condition could be adversely affected.

Changes in government regulations may result in restrictions or prohibitions applicable to the provision of employment services or the
imposition of additional licensing, regulatory or tax requirements.

Our business is heavily regulated in most jurisdictions in which we operate. We cannot assure you that the states in which we
conduct or seek to conduct business will not:

. impose additional regulations that prohibit or restrict employment-related businesses like ours;
. require additional licensing or add restrictions on existing licenses to provide employment-related services; or
. increase taxes or make changes in the way in which taxes are calculated for providers of employment-related services.

Any changes in applicable laws and regulations may make it more difficult or expensive for us to do business, inhibit expansion of
our business, or result in additional expenses that limit our profitability or decrease our ability to attract and retain clients.
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The tax status of our insurance subsidiaries could be challenged resulting in an acceleration of income tax payments.

In conjunction with our workers’ compensation program, we operate two wholly owned insurance subsidiaries, AICE and Ecole. We
treat the two subsidiaries as insurance companies for federal income tax purposes, with respect to our consolidated federal income tax return. In
the event the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) were to determine that the subsidiaries do not qualify as insurance companies, we could be required
to make accelerated income tax payments to the IRS that we otherwise would have deferred until future periods.

We may find it difficult to expand our business into additional states due to varying state regulatory requirements.

Future growth in our operations depends, in part, on our ability to offer our services to prospective clients in new states, which may
subject us to different regulatory requirements and standards. In order to operate effectively in a new state, we must obtain all necessary
regulatory approvals, adapt our procedures to that state’s regulatory requirements and modify our service offerings to adapt to local market
conditions. In the event that we expand into additional states, we may not be able to duplicate in other markets the financial performance
experienced in our current markets.

Acquisitions subject us to various risks, including risks relating to selection and pricing of acquisition targets, integration of acquired
companies into our business and assumption of unanticipated liabilities.

We have completed 27 acquisitions since 1993 and may pursue additional acquisitions and investment opportunities. We cannot
assure, however, that we will be able to identify or complete additional acquisitions. If we do pursue acquisitions, we may not realize the
anticipated benefits of such acquisitions. Acquisitions involve many risks, including risks relating to the assumption of unforeseen liabilities of an
acquired business, adverse accounting charges resulting from the acquisition, and difficulties in integrating acquired companies into our business,
both from a cultural perspective, as well as with respect to personnel and client retention and technological integration. Acquired liabilities may be
significant and may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. Our inability to successfully integrate acquired businesses
may lead to increased costs, failure to generate expected returns, accounting charges, or even a total loss of amounts invested, any of which
could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We face competition from a number of other companies.

We face competition from various companies that may provide all or some of the services we offer. Our competitors include
companies that are engaged in staffing services such as Kelly Services, Inc. and Manpower Inc., companies that are focused on co-employment,
such as Insperity, Inc. and companies that primarily provide payroll processing services, such as Automatic Data Processing, Inc. and
Paychex, Inc. We also face competition from information technology outsourcing firms and broad-based outsourcing and consulting firms that
perform individual projects.
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Several of our existing or potential competitors have substantially greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do,
which may enable them to:

. develop and expand their infrastructure and service offerings more quickly and achieve greater cost efficiencies;

. invest in new technologies;

. expand operations into new markets more rapidly;

. devote greater resources to marketing;

. compete for acquisitions more effectively and complete acquisitions more easily; and

. aggressively price products and services and increase benefits in ways that we may not be able to match financially.

In order to compete effectively in our markets, we must target our potential clients carefully, continue to improve our efficiencies and
the scope and quality of our services, and rely on our service quality, innovation, education and program clarity. If our competitive advantages are
not compelling or sustainable, then we are unlikely to increase or sustain profits and our stock price could decline.

We are dependent upon certain key personnel and recruitment and retention of key employees may be difficult and expensive.

We believe that the successful operation of our business is dependent upon our retention of the services of key personnel, including
our Chief Executive Officer, other executive officers and area managers. We may not be able to retain all of our executives, senior managers and
key personnel in light of competition for their services. If we lose the services of one of our executive officers or a significant number of our senior
managers, our operations and profitability likely would be adversely affected.

We do not have an expansive in-house sales staff and therefore rely extensively on referral partners.

We maintain a minimal internal professional sales force and we rely heavily on referral partners to provide referrals to new business,
especially in California, although each area manager is expected to be an effective leader in business development, including marketing efforts
and sales closures. In connection with these arrangements, we pay a fee to referral partners for new clients. As a result, we are dependent on
firms and individuals that do not have an exclusive relationship with us. If we are unable to maintain these relationships, or if they increase their
fees or lose confidence in our services, we could face declines in our business and additional costs and uncertainties as we attempt to hire and
train an internal sales force.

We depend on attracting and retaining qualified employees; during periods of economic growth, our costs to do so increase and it
becomes more difficult to attract and retain people.

The success of our staffing services depends on our ability to attract and retain qualified employees for placement with our
customers. Our ability to attract and retain

-18-



Table of Contents

qualified personnel could be impaired by rapid improvement in economic conditions resulting in lower unemployment and increases in
compensation. During periods of economic growth, we face growing competition for retaining and recruiting qualified personnel, which in turn leads
to greater advertising and recruiting costs and increased salary expenses. If we cannot attract and retain qualified employees, the quality of our
services may deteriorate and our reputation and results of operations could be adversely affected.

Our service agreements may be terminated on short notice, leaving us vulnerable to loss of a significant amount of customers in a short
period of time, if business or regulatory conditions change or events occur that negatively affect our reputation.

Our client services agreements are generally terminable on 30 days’ notice by either us or the client. As a result, our clients may
terminate their agreement with us at any time, making us particularly vulnerable to changing business or regulatory conditions or changes affecting
our reputation or the reputation of our industry.

Our industry has at times received negative publicity that, if it were to become more prevalent, could cause our business to decline.

In the industries in which we compete, companies periodically have been tarnished by negative publicity or scandals from poor
business judgment or even outright fraud. If we or our industry face negative publicity, customers’ confidence in the use of temporary personnel or
co-employed workers may deteriorate, and they may be unwilling to enter into or continue our staffing or co-employment relationships. If a negative
perception were to prevail, it would be more difficult for us to attract and retain customers.

Changes in state unemployment tax laws and regulations could adversely affect our business.

In past years, there has been significant negative publicity relating to the use of staffing or PEO companies to shield employers from
poor unemployment history and high unemployment taxes. New legislation enacted at the state or federal level to try to counter this perceived
problem could have a material adverse effect on our business by limiting our ability to market our services or making our services less attractive
to our customers and potential customers.

We are, and in the future may be, subject to legal or administrative actions that could adversely affect our results of operations and our
business.

As described in more detail in Item 3 of this Report and in Note 13 to our audited consolidated financial statements included in
Item 15 of this Report, three lawsuits purporting to be class actions brought on behalf of all of BBSI’s stockholders have been filed in the United
States District Court for the Western District of Washington against BBSI and BBSI’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. The
actions allege violations of the federal securities laws based on claims arising from the decline in the market price for our common stock following
announcement of a charge for increased workers compensation reserves expense in the 2014 third quarter. In addition, in February 2015, we
received a letter from counsel from a stockholder threatening to commence a shareholder derivative action on
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behalf of the Company based on the same facts as the three lawsuits already filed, as well as that certain officers and directors sold shares of
BBSI common stock while in possession of material non-public information.

The results of legal proceedings against us, including those described above, if decided adversely to us or to our directors or officers,
could result in significant monetary damages or penalties or reputational harm, and could involve significant defense or other costs. We have
entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and our corporate charter requires us to indemnify each of our officers and
directors against all liabilities, losses, judgments, penalties, fines, settlements and reasonable expenses arising out of their actions in such
capacities to the fullest extent permitted by Maryland law. Although we maintain insurance coverage in amounts and with deductibles that we
believe are appropriate for our operations, our insurance coverage may not cover all claims that have been or may be brought against us, or
continue to be available to us at a reasonable cost. As a result, we may be exposed to substantial uninsured liabilities, including pursuant to our
indemnification obligations, which could adversely affect our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

Maryland law and our Charter and bylaws contain provisions that could make the takeover of the Company more difficult.

Certain provisions of Maryland law and our Charter and bylaws could have the effect of delaying or preventing a third party from
acquiring the Company, even if a change in control would be beneficial to our stockholders. These provisions of our Charter and bylaws:

. permit the Board of Directors to issue up to 500,000 shares of preferred stock with such rights and preferences, including voting
rights, as the Board may establish, without further approval by the Company’s stockholders, which could also adversely affect the
voting power of holders of our common stock; and

. vest the power to adopt, alter or repeal the Company’s bylaws solely in the Board of Directors; the stockholders do not have that
power.

In addition, the Company is subject to the Maryland control share act (the “Control Share Act”). Under the Control Share Act, a person
(an “Acquiring Person”) who acquires voting stock in a transaction (a “Control Share Acquisition”) which results in its holding voting power within
specified ranges cannot vote the shares it acquires in the Control Share Acquisition unless voting rights are accorded to such control shares by
the holders of two-thirds of the outstanding voting shares, excluding the Acquiring Person and the Company’s officers and directors who are also
employees of the Company.

The Company is also subject to the provisions of Maryland law limiting the ability of certain Maryland corporations to engage in
specified business combinations (the “Business Combination Act”). Subject to certain exceptions, the Business Combination Act prohibits a
Maryland corporation from engaging in a business combination with a stockholder who, with its affiliates, owns 10% or more of the corporation’s
voting stock. These provisions will not apply to business combinations that are approved by the Board of Directors before the stockholder became
an interested stockholder.
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Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ltem 2. PROPERTIES

We operate through all 54 of our branch offices. The following table shows the number of locations in each state in which we operate.
We also lease office space in other locations in our market areas which we use to recruit and place employees.

Number of
Branch

Offices Locations
California 20
Oregon 11
Utah
Washington
Idaho
Arizona
Colorado
Maryland
North Carolina
Delaware
Nevada

S a2 DNDNNNWOTO

We lease office space for our branch offices. At December 31, 2014, our leases had expiration dates ranging from less than one year
to six years, with total minimum payments through 2020 of approximately $10.7 million. Our corporate headquarters office in Vancouver,
Washington occupies approximately 40 percent of the 63,500 square foot building we own.

ltem 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On November 6, 2014, plaintiffs in Michael Arciaga, et al. v. Barrett Business Services, Inc., et al., filed an action in the United
States District Court for the Western District of Washington against BBSI and Michael L. Elich and James D. Miller, BBSI's Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, respectively. The action purports to be a class action brought on behalf of all of BBSI’s stockholders alleging
violations of the federal securities laws. The claims arise from the decline in the market price for BBSI common stock following announcement of
a charge for increased workers compensation reserves expense. The lawsuit seeks compensatory damages (in an amount to be determined at
trial), plus interest, and costs and expenses (including attorney fees and expert fees).

On November 13, 2014, a second purported shareholder class action was filed in the United States District Court for the Western
District of Washington, entitled Christopher P. Carnes, et al. v. Barrett Business Services, Inc., et al. The Cames complaint names the same
defendants as the Arciaga case and asserts similar claims for relief.

Similarly, on November 17, 2014, a third purported shareholder class action was filed in the United States District Court for the
Western District of Washington, entitled Shiva Stein, et al. v. Barrett Business Services, Inc., et al. The Stein complaint names the same
defendants as the Arciaga and Carmes cases and asserts similar claims for relief.
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On February 25, 2015, the court ordered consolidation of the three cases, and any new or other cases involving the same subject
matter, into a single action for pretrial purposes. The court also appointed the Painters & Allied Trades District Council No. 35 Pension and Annuity
Funds as the lead plaintiff. Discovery has not been undertaken as it is automatically stayed under the federal Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act.

On February 27, 2015, BBSI received a letter from counsel for an alleged stockholder accusing each of the Company’s directors and
officers with having breached his fiduciary duties of loyalty and good faith based on the same facts as those alleged in the three lawsuits
described above, as well as that certain officers and directors sold shares of BBSI common stock while in possession of material non-public
information. The letter asserts that the Company has sustained and continues to sustain damages, including the costs and expenses incurred in
connection with the Company’s reserve strengthening process, reserve study and consultants, the cost of stock repurchases in October 2014,
compensation paid to the Company’s officers, and costs of negotiating the Company’s credit facility with its principal lender. The letter demands
that BBSI’s Board of Directors take action against each of the Company’s officers and directors to recover these damages and the proceeds of
sales of stock by the officers and directors during 2013 and 2014. The letter states that if the Board does not take these actions within a
reasonable period, the stockholder will commence a shareholder derivative action on behalf of the Company

We intend to vigorously defend against the foregoing actions. We have not recorded any liabilities with respect to the claims in our
audited consolidated financial statements included in Item 15 of this report. We believe that the claims are covered under our directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance, and we have notified our insurance carriers of the claims. The insurers have responded by requesting additional
information and by reserving their rights under the policies, including the right to deny coverage under various policy exclusions. Subject to their
reservation of rights and the satisfaction of applicable deductibles, we expect to be reimbursed for substantially all legal fees relating to our
defense of the claims.

ltem 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not Applicable
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table identifies, as of March 16, 2015, each executive officer of the Company. Executive officers are elected annually
and serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Officer
Name Age Principal Positions and Business Experience Since
Michael L. Elich 49 President and Chief Executive Officer 2005
James D. Miller 51 Vice President-Finance, Treasurer and Secretary; Chief Financial Officer; 1994
Principal Accounting Officer
Gregory R. Vaughn 59 Vice President and Assistant Secretary; 1998
Chief Operating Officer — Corporate Operations
Gerald R. Blotz 45 Vice President, Chief Operating Officer — Field Operations 2014
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Michael L. Elich joined the Company in October 2001 as Director of Business Development. He was appointed Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer in May 2005. He was appointed interim President and Chief Executive Officer in January 2011 upon the death of William
W. Sherertz. Effective February 17, 2011, Mr. Elich was elected to serve on the Board of Directors and was made President and Chief Executive
Officer. From 1995 to 2001, Mr. Elich served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Skills Resource Training Center, a
staffing services company with offices in Oregon, Washington and Idaho that we acquired in 2004.

James D. Miller joined the Company in January 1994 as Controller. He was promoted to Vice President-Finance, Treasurer and
Secretary, and Chief Financial Officer in June 2008. From 1991 to 1994, he was the Corporate Accounting Manager for Christensen Motor Yacht
Corporation. Mr. Miller, a certified public accountant on inactive status, was employed by Price Waterhouse LLP, now known as
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, from 1987 to 1991.

Gregory R. Vaughn joined the Company in July 1997 as Operations Manager. Mr. Vaughn was appointed Vice President in January
1998 and Chief Administrative Officer in February 2012. He was promoted to Chief Operating Officer-Corporate Operations in May 2014. Prior to
joining Barrett, Mr. Vaughn was Chief Executive Officer of Insource America, Inc., a privately-held human resource management company
headquartered in Portland, Oregon, for approximately one year. Mr. Vaughn has also held senior management positions with Sundial Time
Systems, Inc., and Continental Information Systems, Inc. Previously, Mr. Vaughn was employed as a technology consultant by Price Waterhouse
LLP, now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Gerald R. Blotz joined the Company in May 2002 as Area Manager of the San Jose branch office. Mr. Blotz was promoted to Vice
President, Chief Operating Officer-Field Operations in May 2014. Prior to joining BBSI, Gerald was President and Chief Operating Officer of
Protrades Connection, where he was instrumental in building Protrades to 44 offices in four states.
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PART I

Iltem 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock (the “Common Stock”) trades on the Global Select Market segment of The Nasdaq Stock Market under the
symbol “BBSI.” At March 2, 2015, there were 23 stockholders of record and approximately 1,550 beneficial owners of the Common Stock.

The following table presents the high and low sales prices of the Common Stock and cash dividends paid for each quarterly period
during the last two fiscal years, as reported by The Nasdaq Stock Market. The Company’s debt covenants permit continuation of quarterly cash
dividends up to $.0.22 per share so long as there is no default by the Company and payment would not cause a default. Any future determination
as to the payment of dividends will be made at the discretion of the Board and will depend upon the Company’s operating results, financial
condition, capital requirements, general business conditions and such other factors as the Board deems relevant.

Cash Dividends

High Low Declared

2013

First Quarter $ 53.27 $38.15 $ 0.13

Second Quarter 62.82 48.50 0.13

Third Quarter 73.49 48.08 0.13

Fourth Quarter 98.00 66.33 0.18
2014

First Quarter $102.20 $57.82 $ 0.18

Second Quarter 63.19 41.96 0.18

Third Quarter 63.45 39.47 0.18

Fourth Quarter 45.38 18.25 0.22

The Company maintains a Board approved stock repurchase program which currently authorizes shares to be repurchased up to
3.0 million shares of the Company’s stock from time to time in open market purchases. The following table summarizes information related to
stock repurchases during the quarter ended December 31, 2014.

Total Number of Maximum Number of
Shares Repurchased Shares that May Yet

Shares Average Price as Part of Publicly Be Repurchased

Month Repurchased Per Share Announced Plan Under the Plan
October 50,799 $ 39.88 1,878,987 1,121,013
November 0 0 0 1,121,013
December 0 0 0 1,121,013

Total 50,799 1,878,987

The following graph shows the cumulative total return at the dates indicated for the period from December 31, 2009, until
December 31, 2014, for our Common Stock, The
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Nasdaq Composite Index, and a group of the Company’s current peers in the staffing industry (the “2014 Peer Group”). The 2014 Peer Group is
comprised of five companies included in the peer group used to prepare the performance graph included in the Company’s Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2014.

The stock performance graph has been prepared assuming that $100 was invested on December 31, 2009, in our Common Stock,
The Nasdag Composite Index, and the 2014 Peer Group, and that dividends are reinvested. In accordance with the SEC’s disclosure rules, the
stockholder return for each company in the 2014 Peer Group indices has been weighted on the basis of market capitalization as of the beginning of
each annual period shown. The stock price performance reflected in the graph may not be indicative of future price performance.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Barrett Business Services, Inc., the MASDAQ Composite Index, and a Peer Group

$900
5800 |
5700 4
5600 1
$500 |
5400
5300
5200 |
5100
$0
1209 1210 1211 1212 1213 12114
——&— Barrett Business Services, Inc. - <+~ - NASDAQ Composite - -8- - Peer Group
*&100 invested on 12/31/09 in stock or index, including reinvestmant of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31
12/09 12/10 12/11 12/12 12/13 12/14
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Item 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with the Company’s financial statements and the
accompanying notes listed in Item 8 of Part Il, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” and the information contained in Item 7 of Part 1,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Historical results are not necessarily indicative of
future results.

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands, except per share data)
Statement of operations:
Revenues:
Professional employer service fees $470,351 $388,963  $276,004  $190,113  $147,385
Staffing services 165,833 143,881 126,648 124,761 125,738
Total 636,184 532,844 402,652 314,874 273,123
Cost of revenues:
Direct payroll costs 126,399 108,800 95,128 94,568 95,439
Payroll taxes and benefits 266,844 228,903 169,724 123,017 96,660
Workers’ compensation 212,524 108,617 71,086 53,837 36,284
Total 605,767 446,320 335,938 271,422 228,383
Gross margin 30,417 86,524 66,714 43,452 44,740
Selling, general and administrative expenses 73,821 60,061 46,450 38,174 35,429
Depreciation and amortization 2,506 2,037 1,477 1,344 1,395
(Loss) income from operations (45,910) 24,426 18,787 3,934 7,916
Other income (expense):
Life insurance proceeds 0 0 0 10,000 0
Investment income, net 594 723 776 1,199 874
Interest expense (173) (238) (76) (25) (25)
Other, net 152 9) (28) 47 1,162
Total 573 476 672 11,221 2,011
(Loss) income before income taxes (45,337) 24,902 19,459 15,155 9,927
(Benefit from) provision for income taxes (18,253) 7,010 6,328 837 2,574
Net (loss) income (27,084) 17,892 13,131 14,318 7,353
Basic (loss) eamings per share (3.78) 2.52 1.70 1.42 0.71
Weighted average number of basic shares outstanding 7,160 7,105 7,723 10,083 10,333
Diluted (loss) earnings per share (3.78) 2.42 1.67 1.41 0.71
Weighted average number of diluted shares outstanding 7,160 7,397 7,863 10,150 10,372
Cash dividends per common share 0.76 0.57 0.46 0.38 0.33
Selected balance sheet data:
Cash and marketable securities 62,431 119,253 72,394 81,844 61,356
Working capital (deficit) surplus (39,341) 64,421 28,142 49,639 44,563
Total assets 448,528 313,322 228,861 223,097 187,884
Long-term workers’ compensation liabilities 161,933 76,603 45,266 30,596 21,847
Long-term debt, net of current portion 19,833 5,053 5,273 0 0
Stockholders’ equity 38,658 72,553 53,896 101,655 95,365
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Management reached the conclusion in October 2014 that, based on actuarial methods, the estimate of workers’ compensation
liability should reflect a significant increase for the potential development of prior period claims. The Company recorded total workers’
compensation claims expense of $101.2 million during the third quarter of 2014, including a $61.3 million change in estimate relating to prior period
claims. For a detailed discussion, see Note 6 to the audited consolidated financial statements included in Item 15 of this Report.

ltem 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Overview

The Company is a leading provider of business management solutions for small-and mid-sized companies. The Company has
developed a management platform that integrates tools from the human resource outsourcing industry and knowledge-based approach from the
management consulting industry. This platform, through the effective leveraging of human capital, assists our business owner clients in more
effectively running their business.

We deliver the managerial resources and guidance of a large company to small and mid-sized businesses. Our professional employer
service fees are generated from client services agreements with our clients; we enter into a co-employment arrangement in which we become the
administrative employer and the client maintains care, custody and control of their operations. Revenues from client services agreements are
recognized on a net basis in accordance with current accounting guidance for revenue recognition and principal/agent considerations.
Consequently, service fee revenues represent the gross margin generated from our professional employer services after deducting the amounts
invoiced to co-employed clients for direct payroll expenses such as salaries, wages, health insurance and employee out-of-pocket expenses
incurred incidental to employment. These amounts are also excluded from cost of revenues. Our fees also include amounts invoiced to our clients
for employer payroll-related taxes and workers’ compensation coverage.

We generate staffing services revenues primarily from short-term staffing, contract staffing, on-site management and direct
placement services. We recognize revenues from our staffing services for all amounts invoiced, including direct payroll, employer payroll-related
taxes, workers’ compensation coverage and a service fee (equivalent to a mark-up percentage).

Through centralized operations at our headquarters in Vancouver, Washington, we prepare invoices weekly for our staffing services
customers and following the end of each payroll processing cycle for clients under a client services agreement. We invoice our customers and
clients as each payroll is processed. Payment terms for staffing customers are generally 30 days, while co-employed clients’ invoices are
generally due on the invoice date.

Our business is concentrated in California and we expect to continue to derive a majority of our revenues from this market in the
future. Revenues generated in our California offices accounted for 77% of our total net revenues in 2014, 74% in 2013 and 69% in 2012.
Consequently, any weakness in economic conditions or changes in the regulatory environments in California could have a material adverse effect
on our financial results.
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Our cost of revenues is comprised of direct payroll costs for staffing services, employer payroll-related taxes and employee benefits
and workers’ compensation. Direct payroll costs represent the gross payroll earned by staffing services employees based on salary or hourly
wages. Payroll taxes and employee benefits consist of the employer’s portion of Social Security and Medicare taxes, federal and state
unemployment taxes, and staffing services employee reimbursements for materials, supplies and other expenses, which are paid by the customer.

Workers’ compensation expense consists primarily of the costs associated with our self-insured workers’ compensation program,
such as claims reserves, claims administration fees, legal fees, state administrative agency fees and excess insurance costs for catastrophic
injuries. We also maintain separate workers’ compensation insurance policies for employees working in states where we are not self-insured.

The largest portion of workers’ compensation expense is the cost of workplace injury claims. When an injury occurs and is reported to
us, our respective independent TPA or our internal claims management personnel analyze the details of the injury and develop a case reserve,
which becomes the estimate of the cost of the claim based on similar injuries and their professional judgment. We then record or accrue an
expense and a corresponding liability based upon our estimate of the ultimate claim cost. As cash payments are made by our TPA against
specific case reserves, the accrued liability is reduced by the corresponding payment amount. The TPA and our in-house claims administrators
also review existing injury claims on an on-going basis and adjust the case reserves as new or additional information for each claim becomes
available. Our reserve includes a provision both for future anticipated increases in costs (“adverse loss development”) of the claims reserves for
open claims and for claims incurred but not reported related to prior and current periods (together IBNR). This provision for IBNR is based upon an
actuarial estimate provided by our independent actuary. We believe our operational policies and internal claims reporting system help to limit the
occurrence of unreported incurred claims.

Selling, general and administrative expenses represent both branch office and corporate-level operating expenses. Branch operating
expenses consist primarily of branch office staff payroll and personnel related costs, advertising, rent, office supplies, professional and legal fees
and branch incentive compensation. Corporate-level operating expenses consist primarily of executive and office staff payroll and personnel
related costs, professional and legal fees, travel, occupancy costs, information systems costs and executive and corporate staff incentive
compensation.

Depreciation and amortization represents depreciation of property and equipment and amortization of intangible assets consisting of
the amortization of software costs, covenants not to compete, and if material, customer related intangibles. Property and equipment are
depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, which generally range from two to thirty-nine years. Intangible assets
are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, which range from two to ten years.

Critical Accounting Policies
We have identified the following policies as critical to our business and the understanding of our results of operations. For a detailed
discussion of the application of
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these and other accounting policies, see Note 1 to the audited consolidated financial statements included in Item 15 of this Report. Note that the
preparation of this Annual Report on Form 10-K requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Management bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Reserves. We are self-insured for workers’ compensation coverage in a majority of our
employee work sites in Oregon, Maryland, Delaware and Colorado and for staffing services and management employees only in Washington. We
were self-insured in California through December 31, 2014 and now maintain individual policies for all California-based clients. Additionally,
effective March 1, 2010, our employees working in Arizona were eligible for coverage through Ecole. The estimated liability for unsettled workers’
compensation claims represents our best estimate, which includes an evaluation of information provided by our internal claims adjusters and our
third-party claims administrators, coupled with management’s use of an independent actuary. These elements serve as the basis for our overall
estimate for workers’ compensation claims liabilities, which include more specifically the following components: case reserve estimates for
reported losses, plus additional amounts for estimated future development of reported claims and incurred but not reported claims (together IBNR).
Our estimates also include amounts for unallocated loss adjustment expenses, including legal costs. These estimates are continually reviewed
and adjustments to liabilities are reflected in current operating results as they become known.

Incurred but not reported (IBNR”) is based upon an estimate of future claim payments beyond those considered in the specific case
reserve estimates and claims arising from injuries that occurred during a particular time period on or prior to the balance sheet date. Therefore,
IBNR is the compilation of the estimated ultimate losses for each accident year less amounts that have been paid and specific case reserves.
IBNR reserves, unlike specific case reserves, do not apply to a specific claim, but rather apply to the entire body of claims arising from a specific
time period. IBNR primarily provides for costs due to:

1) Future claim payments in excess of case reserves on recorded open claims;
2) Additional claim payments on closed claims; and
3) Claims that have been incurred but have not yet been reported to us.

Our workers’ compensation claims liabilities do not represent an exact calculation of liability, but instead represent management’s
best estimate, generally utilizing actuarial expertise and projection techniques, at a given accounting date. The process of estimating unpaid
claims and claim adjustment expense involves a high degree of judgment and is subject to a number of variables. These variables can be affected
by both internal and external events, such as changes in claims handling and reserve estimation procedures, changes in individuals involved in the
reserve estimation process, inflation, legal trends, and legislative changes.
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We use informed judgment throughout the process, derived from individual experiences and expertise applied to multiple sets of data
and analysis. We consider all significant facts and circumstances known at the time loss reserves are established and as new facts and
circumstances become known. Due to the inherent uncertainty underlying loss reserve estimates,including, but not limited to, the future settlement
environment, final resolution of our estimated liability for our workers’ compensation claims will likely be higher or lower than the related loss
reserves at the reporting date. Therefore, actual paid losses, as specific claims are settled in the future, may be materially different in amount from
our current loss reserves.

A basic premise in most actuarial analyses is that historical data and past patterns demonstrated in the incurred and paid historical
data form a reasonable basis upon which to project future outcomes, absent a material change. To the extent a material change affecting the
ultimate claim liability is known, such change is quantified to the extent possible through an analysis of internal company data and, if available and
when appropriate, external data. Significant structural changes to the available data can materially impact the reserve estimation process.
Actuaries exercise a considerable degree of judgment in the evaluation of these factors in their analysis of reserves. The application of actuarial
judgment is unavoidable when faced with material uncertainty. Different actuaries may choose different assumptions when faced with such
uncertainty, based on their individual backgrounds, professional experiences and the context in which they are reviewing the reserves. Hence, the
estimates selected by different actuaries may differ materially from each other.

We believe that the amounts recorded for our estimated liabilities, which are based upon facts and other trends associated with the
Company’s historical universe of claims data, are reasonable and objective. Nevertheless, it is possible that adjustments to such estimates may
be required in future periods if the development of claim costs varies materially from our estimates and such adjustments, if necessary, could be
material to results of operations.

Safety Incentives Liability. Our accrued safety incentives represent cash incentives paid to certain clients under our client services
agreement for maintaining safe-work practices in order to minimize workplace injuries. The incentive is based on a percentage of annual payroll
and is paid annually to customers who meet predetermined workers’ compensation claims cost objectives. Safety incentive payments are made
only after closure of all workers’ compensation claims incurred during the customer’s contract period. The liability is estimated and accrued each
month based upon the expected payout as determined by historical incentive payment trends. The safety incentive expense is netted against PEO
revenues on our consolidated statements of operations.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We are required to make estimates of the collectability of accounts receivables. Management
analyzes historical bad debts, customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in the customers’
payment tendencies when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. If the financial condition of our customers deteriorates,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required.

Goodwill. We assess the recoverability of goodwill annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value might be impaired. Factors that are
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considered include significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results, significant negative industry
trends and significant change in the manner of use of the acquired assets. Management’s current assessment of the carrying value of goodwill
indicates there was no impairment as of December 31, 2014. If these estimates or their related assumptions change in the future, we may be
required to record impairment charges for these assets whenever events or circumstances occur indicating that goodwill might be impaired.

Investments in Marketable Securities. We consider available evidence in evaluating potential impairment of our investments,
including the duration and extent to which fair value is less than cost and our ability and intent to hold the investment. Investments in securities
classified as trading are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains or losses reported in other income in our consolidated statements of
operations. Investments in securities classified as available-for-sale are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains or losses reported net of tax in
accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income in stockholders’ equity. In the event a loss on our available-for-sale investments is determined to
be other-than-temporary, the loss will be recognized in our statement of operations. Investments in securities classified as held-to-maturity are
reported at amortized cost.

Income Taxes. Ourincome taxes are accounted for using an asset and liability approach. This requires the recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial statement and tax basis of
assets and liabilities at the applicable tax rates. The determination of our provision for income taxes requires significant judgment, the use of
estimates, and the interpretation and application of complex tax laws. Significant judgment is required in assessing the timing and amounts of
deductible and taxable items and the probability of sustaining uncertain tax positions. The impact of uncertain tax positions would be recorded in
our financial statements only after determining a more-likely-than-not probability that the uncertain tax positions would withstand challenge, if any,
from taxing authorities. At December 31, 2014, we had deferred income tax assets of $23.0 million and deferred tax liabilities of $15.4 million for
net deferred income tax assets of $7.6 million. We assess the realization of the deferred income tax assets as significant changes in
circumstances may require adjustments during future periods. The amount of the deferred income tax assets actually realized could vary, if there
are differences in the timing or amount of future reversals of existing deferred income tax assets or changes in the actual amounts of future
taxable income as compared to operating forecasts. If our operating forecast is determined to no longer be reliable due to uncertain market
conditions, our long-term forecast may require reassessment. As a result, in the future, a valuation allowance may be required to be established
for all or a portion of the deferred income tax assets. Such a valuation allowance could have a significant effect on our future results of operations
and financial position.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
For a discussion of recent accounting pronouncements and their potential effect on the Company’s results of operations and financial
condition, refer to Note 1 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements beginning at page [F-8] of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

-31-



Table of Contents

Forward-Looking Information

Statements in this Item or in Iltems 1 and 1A of this Report which are not historical in nature, including discussion of economic
conditions in the Company’s market areas and effect on revenue levels, the potential for and effect of acquisitions, the effect of changes in the
Company’s mix of services on gross margin, continued retention of customers following price increases, the adequacy of the Company’s workers’
compensation reserves and the effect of changes in estimate of its claims liabilities on its workers’ compensation liability, the effect of changes in
its reserving practices and claims management process on its actuarial estimates and workers’ compensation reserves, the ability of the Company
to generate sufficient taxable income in the future to utilize its deferred tax assets, the effect of changes in the interest rate environment on the
value of the Company’s investment securities and long-term debt, the adequacy of the Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts, the effect of
the Company’s formation and operation of two wholly owned fully licensed insurance subsidiaries and becoming self-insured for certain business
risks, the operation and cost of the Company’s fronted insurance program with ACE in California, the financial viability of the Company’s excess
insurance carriers, the effectiveness of the Company’s management information systems, payment of future dividends and the availability of
financing and working capital to meet the Company’s funding requirements, are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that
may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Company or industry to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors with respect to the Company include the
Company’s ability to retain current customers and attract new clients, economic trends in the Company’s service areas, the potential for material
deviations from expected future workers’ compensation claims experience, the effect of changes in the workers’ compensation regulatory
environment in one or more of the Company’s primary markets, difficulties associated with integrating acquired businesses and clients into the
Company’s operations, collectability of accounts receivable, the carrying values of deferred income tax assets and goodwill, which may be
affected by the Company’s future operating results, the effect of conditions in the global capital markets on the Company’s investment portfolio
and the availability of capital, borrowing capacity on the Company’s revolving credit facility, or letters of credit necessary to meet state-mandated
surety deposit requirements for maintaining the Company’s status as a qualified self-insured employer for workers’ compensation coverage or its
fronted insurance program, among others. The Company disclaims any obligation to update any such factors or to publicly announce the result of
any revisions to any of the forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect future events or developments.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the percentages of total revenues represented by selected items in the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, included in Item 15 of this report. References to the Notes to
Financial Statements appearing below are to the notes to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 15 of this report.

Percentage of Total Net Revenues
Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Revenues:
Professional employer service fees 73.9% 73.0% 68.5%
Staffing services 26.1 27.0 31.5
Total 100.0 100.0 100.0
Cost of revenues:
Direct payroll costs 19.9 20.4 23.6
Payroll taxes and benefits 41.9 43.0 42.1
Workers’ compensation 33.4 20.4 17.7
Total 95.2 83.8 83.4
Gross margin 4.8 16.2 16.6
Selling, general and administrative expenses 11.6 11.2 11.5
Depreciation and amortization 0.4 0.4 0.4
(Loss) income from operations (7.2) 4.6 4.7
Other income 0.1 0.1 0.1
(Loss) income before income taxes (7.1) 4.7 4.8
(Benefit from) provision for income taxes (2.8) 1.3 1.6
Net (loss) income (4.3)% 3.4% 3.2%

We report PEO revenues on a net basis because we are not the primary obligor for the services provided by our co-employed clients
to their customers pursuant to our client service agreements. We present for comparison purposes the gross revenues and cost of revenues
information for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 set forth in the table below. Although not in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”), management believes this information is more informative as to the level of our business
activity and more illustrative of how we manage our operations, including the preparation of our internal operating forecasts, because it presents
our PEO services on a basis comparable to our staffing services.

The presentation of revenues on a net basis and the relative contributions of staffing and PEO services revenues can create volatility
in our gross margin percentage. The general impact of fluctuations in our revenue mix is described below.

. A relative increase in PEO services revenue will result in higher gross margin percentage. Improvement in gross margin percentage
occurs because incremental client services revenue dollars are reported as revenue net of all related direct costs.

. A relative increase in staffing revenues will typically result in a lower gross margin percentage. Staffing revenues are presented at
gross with the related direct costs

-33-



Table of Contents

reported in cost of sales. While staffing relationships typically have higher margins than co-employment relationships, an increase in
staffing revenues and related costs presented at gross dilutes the impact of the net PEO services revenue on gross margin

percentage.
Year Ended
December 31,
(in thousands) 2014 2013
Revenues:
Professional employer services $ 3,191,229 $ 2,665,714
Staffing services 165,833 143,881
Total revenues 3,357,062 2,809,595
Cost of revenues:
Direct payroll costs 2,827,732 2,369,282
Payroll taxes and benefits 266,844 228,903
Workers’ compensation 232,069 124,886
Total cost of revenues 3,326,645 2,723,071
Gross margin $ 30417 $ 86,524

A reconciliation of non-GAAP gross revenues to net revenues is as follows for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in

thousands):
Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Reporting Method Reclassification Reporting Method
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Revenues:
Professional employer services $ 3,191,229 $ 2,665,714 $ (2,720,878) $ (2,276,751) $ 470,351 388,963
Staffing services 165,833 143,881 0 0 165,833 143,881
Total revenues $ 3,357,062 $ 2,809,595 $ (2,720,878) $ (2,276,751) $ 636,184 532,844
Cost of revenues: $ 3,326,645 $ 2,723,071 $ (2,720,878) $ (2,276,751) $ 605,767 446,320
The amount of the reclassification is comprised of direct payroll costs and safety incentives attributable to our PEO client
companies.

Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Net loss for 2014 amounted to $27.1 million as compared to net income of $17.9 million for 2013. Net loss in 2014 was primarily
driven by the Company’s recording of an incremental $61.3 million to its self-insured workers’ compensation reserve as a result of a change in
estimate relating to prior period claims during the third quarter of 2014. Diluted loss per share for 2014 was $3.78 compared to a diluted income per

share of $2.42 for 2013.

Revenues for 2014 totaled $636.2 million, an increase of approximately $103.3 million or 19.4%, which reflects an increase in both
the Company’s professional employer service fee revenue and staffing services revenue. Professional employer service fee revenue increased

approximately $81.4 million or 20.9% over 2013, primarily from continued strength
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in our referral channels as business from new customers during 2014 nearly doubled our lost business from former customers. Professional
employer service revenue from continuing customers grew 8.9% on a year-over-year basis, primarily resulting from increases in employee
headcount and hours worked. Staffing services revenue increased approximately $22.0 million or 15.3% over 2013 due to growth in new customers
as well as the addition of new business, partially offset by lost business from former customers. Approximately 77% and 74%, respectively, of our
total net revenues during 2014 and 2013 was attributable to our California operations.

During 2014, the Company served approximately 3,665 co-employment clients, which compares to approximately 3,200 co-
employment clients during 2013. During 2014, the Company served approximately 1,825 staffing services customers, which compares to 1,870
during 2013.

Gross margin for 2014 totaled approximately $30.4 million, which represented a decrease of $56.1 million or 64.8% from 2013,
primarily due to an increase in workers’ compensation expense as a percentage of revenues, partially offset by an increase in revenues of 19.4%
and a decline in payroll taxes and benefits and direct payroll costs as a percentage of revenues. The gross margin percent decreased from 16.2%
of revenues for 2013 to 4.8% for 2014.

Workers’ compensation expense, in terms of dollars and as a percentage of revenues, increased from $108.6 million or 20.4% in
2013 to $212.5 million or 33.4% in 2014. The percentage rate increase was primarily due to the Company’s recording of an incremental $61.3
million to its self-insured workers’ compensation reserve as a result of a change in estimate relating to prior period claims at September 30, 2014.

The Company has provided a total of $216.0 million and $112.4 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, as an
estimated future liability for unsettled workers’ compensation claims liabilities. The estimated liability for unsettled workers’ compensation claims
represents management’s best estimate based upon an actuarial valuation provided by a third party actuary at December 31, 2014 and 2013.
Included in the claims liabilities are case reserve estimates for reported losses, plus additional amounts based on projections for incurred but not
reported claims and anticipated increases in case reserve estimates. Also included in these estimates are amounts for unallocated loss
adjustment expenses, including legal costs. These estimates are continually reviewed and adjustments to liabilities are reflected in current
operating results as they become known.

We have undertaken a number of steps during the past two years to improve our workers’ compensation claims administration
practices. These steps include hiring additional claim administrators in response to our business growth, and working to close litigated claims more
quickly.

Beginning in late 2013, as part of our efforts to improve our claims handling practices, the Company initiated a specific case reserve
study on its open workers’ compensation claims with injury dates in 2012 and earlier. The specific case reserve study resulted in moving dollars
from the general IBNR reserve for unreported claims and future loss development of known claims into specific case reserves for individual
claims. This

-35-



Table of Contents

process was intended to provide management with a more accurate estimate of the ultimate total cost of each claim at a detailed level.
Management believes that this change in process provides better information to our claims management personnel to evaluate and close historical
and future claims at lower ultimate total costs than our historical practices.

Additionally, in mid-2013, the Company initiated a change to its individual claim handling practices by recording specific case
reserves on new claims at amounts that include all of the anticipated future costs and working to close claims more quickly with the goal of
reducing the ultimate total cost of the claims. Previously, the Company had litigated claims more often, but determined that this practice often
resulted in a higher total cost to resolve claims.

While management believes that the changes in the claims handling process are having the intended result of lowering the ultimate
total cost per claim, we became aware, during the second quarter of 2014, that these combined initiatives were causing a disruption of the
historical incurred and paid trends within our claims data from an actuarial perspective.

In May 2014, the Company engaged an actuarial consultant to assist management in studying selected historical claims experience
and the impact of the change in its claims handling process. During the third quarter of 2014, the Company engaged a new actuary to assist
management in determining its best estimate of the Company’s workers’ compensation liability. Based on the work of the new actuary and a
thorough review of the Company’s claims handling practices and the results of the work performed by the actuarial consultant engaged during the
second quarter of 2014, management reached the conclusion in October 2014 that, based on actuarial methods, the estimate of workers’
compensation liability should reflect a significant increase for the potential development of prior period claims. We believe this change in estimate
resulted primarily from the structural changes to the available claims data described above and generated a total workers’ compensation claims
expense accrual of $101.2 million for the third quarter of 2014, including a $61.3 million change in estimate relating to prior period claims.
Management’s primary considerations in arriving at its estimate of workers’ compensation liability include the significant increase in the
Company’s business in recent years, the potential for unexpected future adverse development of open claims, and the increasing complexity and
uncertainty surrounding healthcare costs.

In September 2012, California Senate Bill 863 (“SB 863”) was signed into law. Under SB 863, the California Director of Self-Insurance
was ordered not to issue certificates of consent to self-insure after January 1, 2013 to any employer engaged in the activities of a professional
employer organization, a leasing employer, a temporary services employer or any employer the Director determines to be in the business of
providing employees to other employers. Additionally, the Director was required to revoke any previously issued certificate of consent to self-
insure in favor of any employer engaged in these types of activities not later than January 1, 2015. To address this issue, BBSI entered into an
arrangement typically known as a “fronted” program with ACE Group. Under this arrangement, the risk of loss up to the first $5.0 million per claim
is retained by BBSI through an indemnity agreement, although ACE is responsible for any claims BBSI is unable to satisfy. In addition, ACE
continues to be BBSI’s carrier for costs in excess of $5.0 million per claim. All of BBSI's California clients were transitioned to ACE policies prior
to the December 31, 2014 deadline. We expect to offset the increased costs of the fronted program and the increase in the loss accrual rate
described above through price increases to selected customers.
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The decrease in payroll taxes and benefits, as a percentage of revenues, from 43.0% for 2013 to 41.9% for 2014, was primarily due
to optimizing the use of prior wages applied against the state unemployment taxable wage basis as new PEO customers are brought on board and
to a slight rise in the overall average wage rates which allowed the tax ceilings to be reached sooner in 2014 as compared to 2013. The decrease
in direct payroll costs, as a percentage of revenues, from 20.4% for 2013 to 19.9% for 2014 was primarily due to the increase in our mix of PEO
services in the Company’s customer base compared to 2013 and the effect of each customer’s unique mark-up percent. We expect gross margin
as a percentage of total revenues to continue to be influenced by fluctuations in the mix between staffing and PEO services, as well as changes
to our estimates for workers’ compensation claims liabilities, as necessary.

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses consist of compensation and other expenses relating to the operation of our
headquarters and our branch offices and the marketing of our services. SG&A expenses for 2014 amounted to approximately $73.8 million, an
increase of $13.8 million or 22.9% over 2013. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in management payroll, information technology
(“IT”) expenses, and other variable expense components within SG&A to support our business growth. The increased IT expenses relate to
projects designed to enhance access and delivery of information to the field as well as to improve efficiencies over time. SG&A expenses, as a
percentage of revenues, increased from 11.2% in 2013 to 11.6% in 2014.

Other income for 2014 was $573,000 compared to other income of $476,000 for 2013. Other income for 2014 was primarily
attributable to investment income earned on the Company’s cash and marketable securities.

Our effective income tax rate for 2014 was (40.3)% reflecting our loss from operations, as compared to 28.2% for 2013. Our income
tax rate typically differs from the federal statutory tax rate of 35% primarily due to federal employment tax credits and state tax expense, net of
federal benefit. See Note 10 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page F-26 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K regarding
income taxes; for additional information.

The Company has established a valuation allowance for certain deferred tax assets due to uncertainties regarding the Company’s
ability to generate future taxable investment gains in order to utilize certain investment impairment losses and investment loss carry forwards for
tax purposes. The realization of a significant portion of net deferred tax assets is based in part on our estimates of the timing of reversals of
certain temporary differences and on the generation of taxable income before such reversals. At December 31 2014, we maintained a valuation
allowance for approximately $1.1 million of federal and state tax benefits that are not expected to be utilized.

Under ASC 740, “Income Taxes, management evaluates the realizability of the deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis under a
“more-likely than not” standard. As part of this evaluation, management reviews all evidence both positive and negative to determine if a valuation
allowance is needed. One component of this analysis is to determine whether the Company was in a cumulative loss position for the most recent
12 quarters. Despite the increase to the workers’ compensation reserve in the third quarter of 2014, the Company was in a cumulative income
position for the 12 quarters ended December 31, 2014.
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Management’s review of positive evidence included the existence of federal and California taxable income in eligible carryback years,
reversal of temporary items and projection of future taxable income. The projection of future taxable income was a significant factor in
management’s determination that no additional valuation allowance was required at December 31, 2014. Management’s projections of taxable
income are based on the existence of signed annual contracts with the Company’s PEO customer base, objective evidence that the Company’s
customers are retained at a rate in excess of 90% over long periods, and objective evidence that recent price increases are being accepted by the
Company’s customer base.

Management has continued to improve the Company’s procedures in many areas of its self-insured workers’ compensation program
over the past two years; see Note 6 to the audited consolidated financial statements included in Item 15 of this Report. The results of these efforts
have improved management’s ability to project workers’ compensation expense. Management will monitor the need for an additional valuation
allowance at each quarter in the future and, if the negative evidence outweighs the positive evidence, an allowance will be recorded.

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Net income for 2013 amounted to $17.9 million, as compared to net income of $13.1 million for 2012. Net income in 2013 was
primarily driven by a 32.3% increase in revenues. Diluted income per share for 2013 was $2.42 compared to a diluted income per share of $1.67
for 2012. 2013 reflected nearly 500,000 fewer diluted common shares outstanding compared to 2012 primarily due to the Company’s repurchase of
approximately 2.5 million shares from the Estate of William W. Sherertz, as well as 500,000 shares from Nancy Sherertz, on March 28, 2012.

Revenues for 2013 totaled $532.8 million, an increase of approximately $130.2 million or 32.3%, which reflects an increase in both
the Company’s PEO service fee revenue and staffing services revenue. PEO service fee revenue increased approximately $113.0 million or
40.9% over 2012 primarily due to growth in new customers as co-employment based business from new customers during 2013 tripled our lost
PEO business from former customers. PEO service revenue from continuing customers grew 10.2% on a year-over-year basis, primarily resulting
from increases in employee headcount and hours worked. Staffing services revenue increased approximately $17.2 million or 13.6% over 2012 due
to growth in new customers, as well as an increase in revenue from existing customers. Approximately 74% and 69%, respectively, of our total net
revenues during 2013 and 2012 was attributable to our California operations.

During 2013, the Company served approximately 3,200 co-employment clients, which compares to approximately 2,910 co-
employment clients during 2012. During 2013, the Company served approximately 1,870 staffing service customers, which compares to 1,850
during 2012.

Gross margin for 2013 totaled approximately $86.5 million, which represented an increase of $19.8 million or 29.7% over 2012,
primarily due to the 32.3% increase in revenues
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and a decline in direct payroll costs as a percentage of revenues, partially offset by higher payroll taxes and benefits and workers’ compensation
expense as a percentage of revenues. The gross margin percent decreased from 16.6% of revenues for 2012 to 16.2% for 2013. The increase in
payroll taxes and benefits, as a percentage of revenues, from 42.1% for 2012 to 43.0% for 2013, was principally due to a relative shift in business
mix to PEO services, with payroll taxes and benefits presented at gross cost, while the related direct payroll costs are netted against PEO
services revenue, and to higher effective state unemployment tax rates in various states in which the Company operated in 2013 as compared to
2012. Workers’ compensation expense for 2013 totaled $108.6 million, which compares to $71.1 million for 2012. Workers’ compensation expense,
as a percent of revenues, increased from 17.7% in 2012 to 20.4% in 2013. The increase in the percentage rate was primarily driven by an increase
in the provision for claim costs related to current year claims and increases in the estimated costs to close prior year claims and higher insurance
broker commissions resulting from increased workers’ compensation insurance rates. The decrease in direct payroll costs, as a percentage of
revenues, from 23.6% for 2012 to 20.4% for 2013 was primarily due to the increase in our mix of PEO services in the Company’s customer base
compared to 2012 and the effect of each customer’s unique mark-up percent.

SG&A expenses for 2013 amounted to approximately $60.1 million, an increase of $13.6 million or 29.3% over 2012. The increase
was primarily attributable to an increase in management payroll and other variable expense components within SG&A to support our business
growth and to higher incentive pay based on increased branch performance. SG&A expenses, as a percentage of revenues, decreased from
11.5% in 2012 to 11.2% in 2013.

Other income for 2013 was $476,000 compared to other income of $672,000 for 2012. Other income for 2013 was primarily
attributable to investment income earned on the Company’s cash and marketable securities.

Our effective income tax rate for 2013 was 28.2%, as compared to 32.5% for 2012. Our income tax rate typically differs from the
statutory tax rate of 39.0% primarily due to federal and state employment tax credits.

Fluctuations in Quarterly Operating Results

We have historically experienced significant fluctuations in our quarterly operating results and expect such fluctuations to continue in
the future. Our operating results may fluctuate due to a number of factors such as seasonality, wage limits on statutory payroll taxes, claims
experience for workers’ compensation, demand for our services and competition and the effect of acquisitions. Payroll taxes, as a component of
cost of revenues, generally decline throughout a calendar year as the applicable statutory wage bases for federal and state unemployment taxes
and Social Security taxes are exceeded on a per employee basis. Our revenue levels may be higher in the third quarter due to the effect of
increased business activity of our customers’ businesses in the agriculture, food processing and forest products-related industries. In addition,
revenues in the fourth quarter may be affected by many customers’ practice of operating on holiday-shortened schedules. Workers’ compensation
expense varies with both the frequency and severity of workplace injury claims reported during a quarter and the estimated future costs of such
claims. In addition, adverse loss development of prior period claims during a subsequent quarter may also contribute to the volatility in the
Company’s estimated worker's compensation expense.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s cash position of $11.5 million at December 31, 2014 decreased $82.0 million compared to December 31, 2013, which
compares to an increase of $47.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in cash at December 31, 2014, as compared to
December 31, 2013, was primarily due to a net loss of $27.1 million, purchases of restricted certificates of deposits of $101.5 million, net
purchases of $51.1 million of restricted marketable securities, net purchases of $25.2 million of marketable securities, increases in trade accounts
receivable, income taxes receivable and deferred income taxes of $38.0 million, and dividends paid of $5.4 million, partially offset by increases in
workers’ compensation claims liabilities of $103.5 million, accrued payroll, payroll taxes and related benefits of $27.6 million, and proceeds of
$40.0 million from the issuance of long-term debt.

Net cash provided by operating activities for 2014 amounted to $69.6 million, as compared to net cash provided by operating
activities of $70.2 million for 2013. For 2014, cash flow was primarily provided by an increase in workers’ compensation claims liabilities of $103.5
million and accrued payroll, payroll taxes and related benefits of $27.6 million, partially offset by a net loss of $27.1 million, and increases in trade
accounts receivable of $17.0 million, income taxes receivable of $11.4 million and deferred income taxes of $9.5 million.

Net cash used in investing activities totaled $182.5 million for 2014, compared to net cash used in investing activities of $17.4 million
for 2013. For 2014, cash used in investing activities was primarily used for purchases of restricted certificates of deposits of $101.5 million,
purchases of restricted marketable securities of $61.6 million, purchases of marketable securities of $38.4 million, and purchases of property and
equipment of $4.6 million, partially offset by proceeds from sales and maturities of marketable securities of $13.2 million and proceeds from
maturities of restricted marketable securities of $10.5 million. The Company presently has no material long-term capital commitments.

The Company’s investment policy strictly defines the types and quantities of investments that can be made by its investment
brokers. The general parameters of our investment policy are as follows:

. We make investments in highly rated instruments to reduce our investment risk. Short-term instruments (maturity of less than one
year) must be obligations of issuers rated A2/P2 or better by two National Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations. Long-term
instruments (maturities greater than one year) must be obligations of issuers rated BBB-/Baa3 or better by two National Recognized
Statistical Rating Organizations.

. No more than 5% of our investment portfolio is invested in any one issuer (excluding U.S. Treasury obligations and Federal Agency
obligations including Government Sponsored Enterprises).

To monitor our overall investment risk and to assess the fair values of assets within our investment portfolio, we review our
investment portfolio on a quarterly basis for significant unrealized gains or losses. We define significant to be in excess of 5% of cost basis. When
we identify significant unrealized gains or losses, we inquire as to the reasons with our investment advisors.
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Net cash provided by financing activities for 2014 was $30.9 million compared to net cash used in financing activities of $5.0 million
for 2013. For 2014 the primary sources of cash provided by financing activities was $40.0 million from the issuance of long-term debt, partially
offset by the payment of regular quarterly cash dividends totaling $5.4 million to holders of the Company’s common stock and the repurchase of
common stock for $3.7 million.

The Company’s business strategy continues to focus on growth through the expansion of operations at existing branch offices,
together with the possibility of selective acquisition of additional personnel-related businesses, both in its existing markets and other strategic
geographic markets. The Company periodically evaluates proposals for various acquisition opportunities, but there can be no assurance that any
additional transactions will be consummated.

As disclosed in Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Report, effective December 29, 2014, the Company entered
into a new credit agreement (the “Agreement”) with its principal bank, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (the “Bank”). The Agreement,
provides for a $40.0 million term loan maturing December 31, 2016, as well as a $14.0 million revolving credit line, with a $5.0 million sublimit for
unsecured standby letters of credit. The Company had no outstanding borrowings on its revolving credit line at December 31, 2014. The
Agreement also provides for an increase to a total of $114.3 million in cash-secured letters of credit to satisfy collateral requirements associated
with various surety deposit requirements for workers’ compensation purposes in the state of California. In conjunction with the letter of credit, the
Company posted $114.3 million of certificates of deposit with Wells Fargo as collateral and is included in long-term assets on the consolidated
balance sheet. The Agreement includes a non-refundable commitment fee of $400,000, which is reported within prepaid expenses and other on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet. The fee will be amortized to interest expense ratably over the term of the loan.

The $40.0 million term loan with the Bank requires payments of $3.0 million on June 30, 2015, $7.0 million on September 30, 2015,
$15.0 million on December 31, 2015, $5.0 million on June 30, 2016 and $5.0 million on September 30, 2016. The term loan bears interest at the
one month LIBOR plus 4.0%.

Advances under the revolving credit facility bear interest, as selected by the Company of either (a) a daily floating rate of one month
LIBOR plus 2% or (b) a fixed rate of of LIBOR plus 2.0%. The Agreement also provides for an unused commitment fee of 0.35% per year on the
average daily unused amount of the revolving credit facility, and a fee of 1.75% of the face amount of each letter of credit.

The states of California, Oregon, Maryland, Washington, Delaware and Colorado require us to maintain specified investment balances
or other financial instruments, totaling $198.5 million at December 31, 2014 to cover potential workers compensation claims losses related to the
Company’s status as a self-insured employer. In partial satisfaction of these requirements, at December 31, 2014, we have provided surety bonds
and standby letters of credit totaling $194.9 million. The State of California requires the Company to maintain a surety deposit of $190.6 million
(which is included in the total $194.9 million of surety bonds and standby letters of credit), which the Company satisfied through the posting of third
party issued surety bonds, backed by a total of $114.3 million in letters of credit. In conjunction with these letters of credit, the Company posted
$114.3 million of certificates of deposit with Wells Fargo as collateral.
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Management expects future amounts of the certificates of deposit and the letters of credit to decrease as a result of a declining self-
insured liability as the Company’s ability to self-insure in California ended December 31, 2014. Consequently, management expects the
Company’s working capital position to improve in future quarters as the related collateral requirements ease.

The credit facility is collateralized by the Company’s accounts receivable and other rights to receive payment, general intangibles,
inventory and equipment.

The Agreement requires the satisfaction of certain financial covenants as follows:
. minimum Fixed Charge Coverage ratio of no less than 1.5:1.0, measured quarterly on a rolling four-quarter basis; and

. ratio of restricted and unrestricted cash and marketable securities to workers’ compensation and safety incentive liabilities of at least
1.0:1.0, measured quarterly;

The Agreement includes certain additional covenants as follows:
. capital expenditures may not exceed a total of $5.0 million in 2015 and of $4.0 million in 2016 without the Bank’s prior approval;

. prohibition on incurring additional indebtedness without the prior approval of the Bank, other than up to $200,000 per year in purchase
money financing and the aggregate of all purchase money indebtedness does not exceed $400,000 at any time;

. prohibition on repurchases of the Company’s common stock;

. continuation of quarterly cash dividends up to $0.22 per share so long as there is no default by the Company and payment would not
cause a default.

The Agreement also contains customary events of default. If an event of default under the Agreement occurs and is continuing, the
Bank may declare any outstanding obligations under the Agreement to be immediately due and payable. The Company was in compliance with all
applicable financial covenants at December 31, 2014.

Additionally, the Company maintains a term loan with the Bank with a current balance of approximately $5.1 million secured by the
Company’s corporate office building in Vancouver, Washington. The term loan requires payment of monthly installments of $18,375, bearing
interest at the one month LIBOR plus 2.25%, with the unpaid principal balance due November 1, 2017.

The Company is self-insured for certain business insurance risks such as general liability, errors and omissions and umbrella
coverage. Management may explore in the future whether to pursue other vehicles to provide coverage including coverages provided by the
Company’s captive insurance companies.

Management expects that the funds anticipated to be generated from operations, current liquid assets, and availability under its
revolving credit facility will be sufficient in the aggregate to fund the Company’s working capital needs for the next twelve months.
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Contractual Obligations

The Company’s contractual obligations as of December 31, 2014, including commitments for future payments under non-cancelable
lease arrangements, long-term workers’ compensation liabilities for catastrophic injuries, long-term debt, and other long-term liabilities, are
summarized below:

Payments Due by Period

Less

than 1-3 4-5 After
(in thousands) Total 1 year years years 5 years
Operating leases $10,684 $ 3,502 $ 5,107 $2,015 $ 60
Long-term workers’ compensation claims liabilities for catastrophic injuries 271 53 59 51 108
Long-term debt 45,053 25,220 19,833 0 0
Total contractual cash obligations $56,008 $28,775 $24,999 $2,066 $ 168

Inflation

Inflation generally has not been a significant factor in the Company’s operations during the periods discussed above. The Company
has taken into account the impact of escalating medical and other costs in establishing reserves for future expenses for self-insured workers’
compensation claims.

ltem 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates primarily relates to its investment portfolio of liquid assets and
its outstanding borrowings on its line of credit and long-term debt. As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s investment portfolio consisted
principally of approximately $137.6 million in certificates of deposit, $50.1 million in money market funds, $21.7 million in variable rate demand
notes, $8.2 million in municipal bonds and $5.7 million in corporate bonds. The Company’s outstanding long-term debt totaled approximately $45.1
million at December 31, 2014. Based on the Company’s overall interest exposure at December 31, 2014, a 100 basis point increase in market
interest rates would not have a material effect on the fair value of the Company’s investment portfolio of liquid assets, its outstanding borrowings
or its results of operations because of the predominantly short maturities of the securities within the investment portfolio and the relative size of
the outstanding borrowings.

ltem 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements and notes thereto required by this item begin on page F-1 of this report, as listed in Item 15.

ltem 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.
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Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our
“disclosure controls and procedures” as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e) as of December 31, 2014 in connection with the filing of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of
December 31, 2014, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information we are required to disclose in reports that we
file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in rules and forms of the
SEC and is accumulated and communicated to our management as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining for our Company adequate internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014. This
evaluation was based on the framework established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQO”").

Based upon this evaluation and the criteria noted above, management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2014, our internal
control over financial reporting was effective.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014 has been audited by Moss Adams LLP, the
Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears on page F-1 of Item 15 in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of 2014 that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations

Control systems, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control
systems’ objectives are being met. Further, the design of any control systems must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the
benefits of all controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of
controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within our Company have been detected. These
inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple errors
or mistakes. Control systems can also be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons,
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by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part on certain
assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under
all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of
compliance with policies or procedures.
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Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART Il
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information required by this Item 10 concerning directors and executive officers of the Company appears under the heading
“Executive Officers of the Registrant” on page 19 of this report or is incorporated into this report by reference to the Company’s definitive Proxy
Statement for its 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed within 120 days of the Company’s fiscal year end of December 31, 2014 (the
“Proxy Statement”). The additional required information is included under the following headings of the Proxy Statement; Item 1 — “Election of
Directors,” “Stock Ownership by Principal Stockholders and Management — Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” and “Code
of Ethics.”

Audit Committee

The Company has a separately-designated standing audit committee established in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the
Exchange Act known as the Audit and Compliance Committee. The members of the Audit and Compliance Committee are Thomas J. Carley,
chairman, James B. Hicks, Ph.D., and Roger L. Johnson, each of whom is independent as that term is used in Nasdaq listing standards applicable
to the Company.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Company’s Board of Directors has determined that Thomas J. Carley, an audit committee member, qualifies as an “audit
committee financial expert” as defined by Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K under the Exchange Act and is independent as that term is defined for
audit committee members in Nasdaq listing standards applicable to the Company.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by this Item 11 concerning executive and director compensation and participation of compensation committee
members is incorporated into this report by reference to the Proxy Statement, in which required information is included under the headings
“Director Compensation for 2014” and “Executive Compensation.”

ltem 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information required by this Item 12 concerning the security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated
into this report by reference to the Proxy Statement, in which required information is set forth under the headings “Stock Ownership of Principal
Stockholders and Management — Beneficial Ownership Table” and “Additional Equity Compensation Plan Information.”

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information required by this Item 13 concerning certain relationships and related transactions and director independence is
incorporated into this report by reference to the
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Proxy Statement, in which required information is included under the headings Item 1 — “Election of Directors” and “Related Person Transactions.”

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information required by this Item 14 concerning fees paid to our accountants is incorporated into this report by reference to the Proxy
Statement, in which required information is included under the heading “Matters Relating to Our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”
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PART IV

Iltem 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements and Schedules
The Financial Statements, together with the report thereon of Moss Adams LLP, are included on the pages indicated below:

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm — Moss Adams LLP F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31. 2014, 2013 and 2012 F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-8

No schedules are required to be filed herewith.

Exhibits
Exhibits are listed in the Exhibit Index that follows the signature page of this report.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Barrett Business Services, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Barrett Business Services, Inc. and subsidiaries (“‘the Company”) as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive (loss) income, stockholders’ equity and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014. We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting located in Iltem 9A. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the consolidated
financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall consolidated
financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with the authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Barrett Business Services, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash
flows for
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each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of
America. Also in our opinion, Barrett Business Services, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2014, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/s/ Moss Adams LLP

Portland, Oregon
March 16, 2015
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Barrett Business Services, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,2014 and 2013
(In Thousands, Except Par Value)

2014 2013
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,544 $ 93,557
Marketable securities 29,957 19,787
Trade accounts receivable, net 102,627 85,586
Income taxes receivable 11,421 0
Prepaid expenses and other 3,813 3,026
Restricted marketable securities and workers’ compensation deposits 3,776 0
Deferred income taxes 15,791 8,929
Total current assets 178,929 210,885
Marketable securities 20,930 5,909
Property, equipment and software, net 22,675 20,549
Restricted certificates of deposit 114,335 12,789
Restricted marketable securities and workers’ compensation deposits 58,533 11,205
Other assets 1,881 1,864
Workers’ compensation receivables for insured losses and recoveries 3,425 2,301
Goodwill 47,820 47,820
$448,528 $313,322
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 25,220 $ 220
Accounts payable 2,719 3,252
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and related benefits 120,133 92,516
Income taxes payable 0 1,236
Other accrued liabilities 1,917 313
Workers’ compensation claims liabilities 54,049 35,841
Safety incentives liability 14,232 13,086
Total current liabilities 218,270 146,464
Long-term workers’ compensation claims liabilities 161,933 76,603
Long-term debt 19,833 5,053
Deferred income taxes 8,159 10,787
Customer deposits and other long-term liabilities 1,675 1,862
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 7, 9 and 13)
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value; 20,500 shares authorized, 7,126 and 7,165 shares issued and outstanding 71 72
Additional paid-in capital 4,410 5,781
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (23) (26)
Retained earnings 34,200 66,726
38,658 72,553
$448,528 $313,322

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barrett Business Services, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Revenues:
Professional employer service fees
Staffing services

Cost of revenues:
Direct payroll costs
Payroll taxes and benefits
Workers’ compensation

Gross margin
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
(Loss) income from operations
Other income (expense):
Investment income
Interest expense
Other

(Loss) income before income taxes
(Benefit from) provision for income taxes

Net (loss) income
Basic (loss) earnings per share

Weighted average number of basic shares outstanding

Diluted (loss) earnings per share

Weighted average number of diluted shares outstanding

Cash dividends per common share

2014 2013 2012

470,351 388,963 276,004
165,833 143,881 126,648
636,184 532,844 402,652
126,399 108,800 95,128
266,844 228,903 169,724
212,524 108,617 71,086
605,767 446,320 335,938
30,417 86,524 66,714
73,821 60,061 46,450
2,506 2,037 1,477
(45,910) 24,426 18,787
594 723 776
(173) (238) (76)
152 9) (28)

573 476 672
(45,337) 24,902 19,459
(18,253) 7,010 6,328
(27,084) 17,892 13,131
(3.78) 2.52 1.70
7,160 7,105 7,723
(3.78) 2.42 1.67
7,160 7,397 7,863
0.76 0.57 0.46

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barrett Business Services, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
(In Thousands)

For the year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net (loss) income (27,084) 17,892 $ 13,131
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities, net of tax of $3, ($31), and $36 in
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively 3 (49) 57
Comprehensive (loss) income $ (27,081) $ 17,843 $ 13,188

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barrett Business Services, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

(In Thousands)

Balance, December 31, 2011

Common stock issued on exercise of options

Share based compensation expense, net of tax

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation

Company repurchase of common stock

Cash dividends on common stock

Unrealized holding gains on marketable securities, net
of tax

Net income

Balance, December 31, 2012

Common stock issued on exercise of options and
vesting of restricted stock units

Common stock repurchased on vesting of restricted
stock units

Share based compensation expense, net of tax

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation

Cash dividends on common stock

Unrealized holding losses on marketable securities, net
of tax

Net income

Balance, December 31, 2013

Common stock issued on exercise of options and
vesting of restricted stock units

Common stock repurchased on vesting of restricted
stock units

Share based compensation expense, net of tax

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation

Company repurchase of common stock

Cash dividends on common stock

Unrealized holding gains on marketable securities, net
of tax

Net loss

Balance, December 31, 2014

Accumulated

Other
Additional Comprehensive
Common Stock Paid-in (Loss) Retained
Shares = Amount Capital Income Earnings Total

9,871 $ 99 $ 20,943 $ (34) $ 80,647 101,655
132 1 1,844 0 0 1,845
0 0 695 0 0 695
0 0 295 0 0 295
(2,986) (30) (22,864) 0 (37,338) (60,232)
0 0 0 0 (3,550) (3,550)
0 0 0 57 0 57
0 0 0 0 13,131 13,131
7,017 $ 70 $ 913 $ 23 $ 52,890 $ 53,896
148 2 1,858 0 0 1,860
0 0 (89) 0 0 (89)
0 0 1,016 0 0 1,016
0 0 2,083 0 0 2,083
0 0 0 0 (4,056) (4,056)
0 0 0 (49) 0 (49)
0 0 0 17,892 17,892
7,165 $ 72 $ 5781 $ (26) $ 66,726 $ 72,553
56 0 434 0 0 $ 434
(8) 0 (407) 0 0 $ (407)
0 0 1,699 0 0 $ 1,699
0 0 578 0 0 $ 578
(87) 1) (3,675) 0 0 $ (3,676)
0 0 0 0 (5,442) $ (5442)
0 0 0 3 0 $ 3
0 0 0 0 (27,084)  $(27,084)
7,126 $ 71 $ 4410 (23) $ 34,200 $ 38,658

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barrett Business Services, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
(In Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net (loss) income
Reconciliations of net (loss) income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Losses (gains) recognized on marketable securities
Gain recognized on sale and leaseback
Deferred income taxes
Share based compensation
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts receivable, net
Income taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and related benefits
Other accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable
Workers’ compensation claims liabilities
Safety incentives liability
Customer deposits, long-term liabilities and other assets, net

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketable securities
Purchase of marketable securities
Proceeds from maturities of restricted certificates of deposit
Purchase of restricted certificates of deposit
Proceeds from maturities of restricted marketable securities
Purchase of restricted marketable securities

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from credit-line borrowings
Payments on credit-ine borrowings
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt
Commitment fee from the issuance of long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt
Repurchase of common stock
Common stock repurchased on vesting of restricted stock units
Redemption of mandatorily redeemable preferred stock
Dividends paid
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted stock units
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental schedule of noncash financing activities:
Issuance of mandatorily redeemable preferred stock

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2014 2013 2012
$ (27,084) $ 17,892 $13,131
2,506 2,037 1,477
3 (1) 4)

0 (60) (122)
(9,487) (632) 301
1,699 1,016 695
(578) (2,083) (295)
(17,041) (21,665) (17,401)
(11,421) 0 4,133
(387) 1,828 1,043
(533) 1,257 356
27,617 22,948 17,228
1,604 7 6
(658) 3,047 567
103,538 41,880 20,663
1,146 3,244 3,521
(1,328) (519) 358
69,596 70,196 45,657
(4,632) (4,097) (3,712)
13,241 60,850 39,190
(38,434) (59,917) (33,539)
0 63,944 0
(101,546) (76,733) 0
10,524 9,918 10,796
(61,628) (11,397) (10,599)
(182,475) (17,432) 2,136
6,242 132,664 50,229
(6,242) (137,196) (45,697)
40,000 0 5,512
(400) 0 0
(220) (220) (19)
(3,676) 0 (25,432)
(407) (89) 0

0 0 (34,800)
(5,443) (4,056) (3,550)
434 1,860 1,845
578 2,083 295
30,866 (4,954) (51,617)
(82,013) 47,810 (3,824)
93,557 45,747 49,571
11,544 93,557 45,747
$ 0 $ 0 $ 34,800
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Barrett Business Services, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

Summary of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of operations

Barrett Business Services, Inc. (‘BBSI”, the “Company”), is a leading provider of business management solutions for small-and mid-sized
companies. The Company has developed a management platform that integrates a knowledge-based approach from the management
consulting industry with tools from the human resource outsourcing industry. This platform, through the effective leveraging of human capital,
assists our business owner clients in more effectively running their business. We believe this platform, delivered through a decentralized
organizational structure, differentiates BBSI from our competitors. The Company operates through a network of branch offices throughout
California, Oregon, Washington, Idaho, Arizona, Nevada, Utah, Colorado, Maryland, Delaware and North Carolina. Approximately 77%, 74%
and 69%, respectively, of our revenue during 2014, 2013 and 2012 was attributable to our California operations. BBS| was incorporated in
Maryland in 1965.

The Company operates a wholly owned captive insurance company, Associated Insurance Company for Excess (“AICE”). AICE is a fully
licensed captive insurance company holding a certificate of authority from the Arizona Department of Insurance. The purpose of AICE is
twofold: (1) to provide access to more competitive and cost effective insurance markets and (2) to provide additional flexibility in cost
effective risk management. The captive handles the Company’s workers’ compensation claims occurring on or after January 1, 2007. AICE
provides excess workers’ compensation coverage from $1.0 million up to $5.0 million per occurrence in the states of California, Oregon,
Delaware and Washington. AICE also provides general liability insurance coverage for BBSI.

The Company also operates a wholly owned insurance company, Ecole Insurance Company (“Ecole”). Ecole is a fully licensed insurance
company holding a certificate of authority from the Arizona Department of Insurance. Ecole provides workers’ compensation coverage to the
Company’s employees working in Arizona beginning with claims occurring on or after March 1, 2010. The restricted capital used to capitalize
the insurance company was approximately $6.1 million and is included in restricted marketable securities and workers’ compensation
deposits in our consolidated balance sheets.

Principles of consolidation

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on a consolidated basis. All significant intercompany account balances and
transactions between BBSI, AICE, Ecole and BBS |, LLC, the aircraft subsidiary which owns an aircraft for management’s operational travel
needs, have been eliminated in consolidation.

Reportable Segment

The Company has one principal operating and reporting segment. The chief operating decision maker (currently our Chief Executive Officer)
regularly reviews the financial information of our business at a consolidated level in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing
performance.
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Barrett Business Services, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

1.

Summary of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

We recognize revenue as services are rendered by our workforce. Professional employer (PEO) services are normally used by organizations
to satisfy ongoing needs related to the management of human capital and are governed by the terms of a client services agreement with a
minimum term of one year, which cover all employees at a particular work site. Our client services agreements are renewable on an annual
basis and typically require 30 days’ written notice to cancel or terminate the contract by either party. Our client services agreements provide
for immediate termination upon any default of the client regardless of when notice is given. We report PEO revenues on a net basis because
we are not the primary obligor for the services provided by our clients to their customers pursuant to our client services agreements.
Consequently, these service fee revenues represent the gross margin generated from our professional employer services after deducting the
amounts invoiced to our clients for direct payroll expenses such as salaries, wages, health insurance, employee out-of-pocket expenses
incurred incidental to employment, and safety incentives. These amounts are also excluded from cost of revenues. Professional Employer
service fees also include amounts invoiced to our clients for employer payroll-related taxes and workers’ compensation coverage. Staffing
services are engaged by customers to meet short-term and long-term personnel needs.

Cost of revenues

Our cost of revenues for PEO services includes employer payroll related taxes and workers’ compensation. Our cost of revenues for staffing
services is comprised of direct payroll costs, employer payroll related taxes, employee benefits, and workers’ compensation. Direct payroll
costs represent the gross payroll earned by staffing services employees based on salary or hourly wages. Payroll taxes and employee
benefits consist of the employer’s portion of Social Security and Medicare taxes, federal and state unemployment taxes, and staffing
services employee reimbursements for materials, supplies and other expenses, which are paid by our customer. Workers’ compensation
costs consist primarily of the costs associated with our self-insured workers’ compensation program, such as claims reserves, claims
administration fees, legal fees, state administrative agency fees and excess insurance premiums for catastrophic injuries.

We maintain separate workers’ compensation insurance policies for employees working in states where the Company is not self-insured.
Safety incentives represent cash incentives paid to certain client companies engaged in a client services agreement, for maintaining safe-
work practices in order to minimize workplace injuries. The incentive is based on a percentage of annual payroll and is paid annually to
clients who meet predetermined workers’ compensation claims cost objectives.

Cash and cash equivalents
We consider non-restricted short-term investments, which are highly liquid, readily convertible into cash, and have original maturities of less
than three months, to be cash
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Barrett Business Services, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

1.

Summary of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

equivalents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. A substantial portion of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents is
invested in tax-exempt money market funds managed by the Company’s principal bank. The Company maintains cash balances in bank
accounts that normally exceed FDIC insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses related to its cash concentration.

Marketable securities

As of December 31, 2014, the Company’s marketable securities consisted of tax-exempt municipal securities, U.S. Treasuries, variable rate
demand notes (VRDN) and corporate bonds. We determine the appropriate classification for certain investments in debt securities, and
classify our marketable securities as trading or available-for-sale. The Company classifies municipal securities, U.S. Treasuries, VRDN, and
corporate bonds as available for sale; they are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses, net of taxes, shown as a component
of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income in stockholders’ equity. Management considers available evidence in evaluating potential
impairment of investments, including the duration and extent to which fair value is less than cost and the Company’s ability and intent to
hold the investments. In the event a loss is determined to be other-than-temporary, the loss will be recognized in the consolidated
statements of operations.

Restricted marketable securities

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, restricted marketable securities consisted of money market funds held in trust, U.S. Treasures, municipal
debt instruments, and corporate debt instruments with maturities generally from 180 days to two years (see Note 3, Note 4 and Note 6). At
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the approximate fair value of restricted marketable securities equaled their approximate amortized cost.
Restricted marketable securities have been categorized as available-for-sale; they are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses,
net of taxes, shown as a component of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income in stockholders’ equity. Realized gains and losses
on sales of restricted marketable securities are included in other income (expense) on our consolidated statements of operations.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

We must make estimates of the collectability of our accounts receivable for services provided to our customers. Our management analyzes
historical bad debts, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness, current economic conditions, and changes in customers’
payment trends when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. If the financial condition of our customers
deteriorates, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required.
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Barrett Business Services, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

1.  Summary of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Our allowance for doubtful accounts activity is summarized as follows (in thousands):

2014 2013 2012
Balance at January 1,
Allowance for doubtful accounts $242 $ 381 $ 452
Charges to expense 103 300 195
Write-offs of uncollectible accounts, net of recoveries (54) (439) (266)
Balance at December 31, _ _ _
Allowance for doubtful accounts $291 $ 242 $ 381

Income taxes

Our income taxes are accounted for using an asset and liability approach. This requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities at
the applicable tax rates. A valuation allowance is recorded against deferred tax assets if, based on the weight of the available evidence, it is
more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The factors used to assess the likelihood of realization
include the Company’s forecast of the reversal of temporary differences, future taxable income and available tax planning strategies that
could be implemented to realize the net deferred tax assets. Failure to achieve forecasted taxable income in applicable tax jurisdictions
could affect the ultimate realization of deferred tax assets and could result in an increase in the Company’s effective tax rate on future
earnings.

The determination of our provision for income taxes requires significant judgment, the use of estimates, and the interpretation and application
of complex tax laws. Significant judgment is required in assessing the timing and amounts of deductible and taxable items and the
probability of sustaining uncertain tax positions. The Company recognizes the tax benefit from uncertain tax positions if it is more likely than
not that the tax positions will be sustained on examination by the tax authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax
benefit is measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. As facts
and circumstances change, we reassess these probabilities and would record any changes in the consolidated financial statements as
appropriate. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.

Business combinations

We account for business combinations using the acquisition method of accounting. Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business
combination are expensed as incurred. Changes in deferred tax asset valuation allowances and acquired income tax uncertainties after the
measurement period are recognized in earnings.
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Barrett Business Services, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

1.

Summary of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill is recorded as the difference, if any, between the aggregate consideration paid for a business combination and the fair value of the
net assets acquired. Goodwill is not amortized, but is evaluated for impairment annually, or more frequently if indicators of impairment are
present or changes in circumstances suggest that impairment may exist. The Company has one reporting unit and evaluates the carrying
value of goodwill annually at December 31. No impairment has been recognized in the periods presented.

Our intangible assets with definite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated economic useful lives.

Property, equipment and software

Property, equipment and software are stated at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operating expense as incurred
and expenditures for additions and improvements are capitalized. The cost of assets sold or otherwise disposed of and the related
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in the consolidated statements of
operations.

Depreciation of property, equipment and software is calculated using either straight-line or accelerated methods over estimated useful lives
of the related assets or lease terms, as follows:

Years
Buildings 39
Office furniture and fixtures 7
Computer hardware and software 3-10
Aircraft 20
Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term or estimated useful life

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets, such as property, equipment and software and acquired intangibles, subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment
annually, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the remaining estimated useful life may warrant revision or that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Some of the events or changes in circumstances that would trigger an impairment
review include, but are not limited to, significant under-performance relative to expected and/or historical results (such as two years of
significant sales declines or two years of significant negative operating cash flows), significant negative industry or economic trends, or
knowledge of transactions involving the sale of similar property at amounts below the carrying value.

Assets are grouped for recognition and measurement of impairment at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of the cash flows of other assets. If the carrying amount of an asset group exceeds the estimated, undiscounted
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Barrett Business Services, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

1.

Summary of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset, then an impairment charge is recognized to the extent the carrying amount
exceeds the asset’s fair value. In determining fair value, management considers current results, trends, future prospects, and other
economic factors.

Workers’ compensation claims liabilities

The estimated liability for unsettled workers’ compensation claims represents an evaluation of information provided by our internal claims
adjusters and our third-party administrators for workers’ compensation claims, coupled with an actuarial estimate of future cost development
of reported claims and incurred but not reported claims (together, IBNR) provided by the Company’s independent actuary. Included in the
claims liabilities are case reserve estimates for reported losses, plus additional amounts for estimated future development of reported claims
and incurred but not reported claims as well as estimates for unallocated loss adjustment expenses, including legal costs. These estimates
are continually reviewed and adjustments to liabilities are reflected in current operating results as they become known.

The Company’s independent actuary provides management with an estimate of the current portion and long-term portion of our total workers’
compensation claims. The current portion represents the best estimate of 2014 and prior year claims expected to be paid out in 2015. The
Company will also pay out a portion of the 2015 claims during 2015.

Our workers’ compensation claims liabilities do not represent an exact calculation of liability, but instead represent management’s best
estimate, generally utilizing actuarial expertise and projection techniques, at a given accounting date. The process of estimating unpaid
claims and claim adjustment expense involves a high degree of judgment and is subject to a number of variables. These variables can be
affected by both internal and external events such as changes in claims handling and reserve estimation procedures, changes in individuals
involved in the reserve estimation process, inflation, legal trends and legislative changes.

We use informed judgment throughout the process, derived from individual experiences and expertise applied to multiple sets of data and
analysis. We consider all significant facts and circumstances known at the time loss reserves are established and as new facts and
circumstances become known. Due to the inherent uncertainty underlying loss reserve estimates including, but not limited to, the future
settlement environment, final resolution of our estimated liability for our workers’ compensation claims will likely be higher or lower than the
related loss reserves at the reporting date. Therefore, actual paid losses, as specific claims are settled in the future, may be materially
different in amount from our current loss reserves.

F-13



Table of Contents

Barrett Business Services, Inc.
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1.

Summary of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A basic premise in most actuarial analyses is that historical data and past patterns demonstrated in the incurred and paid historical data
form a reasonable basis upon which to project future outcomes, absent a material change. To the extent a material change affecting the
ultimate claim liability is known, such change is quantified to the extent possible through an analysis of internal Company data and, if
available and when appropriate, external data. Significant structural changes to the available data can materially impact the reserve
estimation process. Actuaries exercise a considerable degree of judgment in the evaluation of these factors in their analysis of reserves.
The application of actuarial judgment is unavoidable when faced with material uncertainty. Different actuaries may choose different
assumptions when faced with such uncertainty, based on their individual backgrounds, professional experiences and the context in which
they are reviewing the reserves. Hence, the estimates selected by different actuaries may differ materially from each other.

Safety incentives liability

Safety incentives represent cash incentives paid to certain PEO client companies for maintaining safe-work practices in order to minimize
workplace injuries. The incentive is based on a percentage of annual payroll and is paid annually to customers who meet predetermined
workers’ compensation claims cost objectives. Safety incentive payments are made only after closure of all workers’ compensation claims
incurred during the customer’s contract period. The liability is estimated and accrued each month based upon contract year-to-date payroll
and the then-current amount of the customer's estimated workers’ compensation claims reserves as established by us and our third party
administrator and the expected payout as determined by historical incentive payment trends. Safety incentive expense is netted against
PEO services revenue in our consolidated statements of operations.

Customer deposits
We require deposits from certain PEO customers to cover a portion of our accounts receivable due from such customers in the event of
default of payment.

Comprehensive (loss) income

Comprehensive (loss) income includes all changes in equity during a period except those that resulted from investments by or distributions
to the Company’s stockholders.

Other comprehensive (loss) income refers to revenues, expenses, gains and losses that under generally accepted accounting principles are
included in comprehensive (loss) income, but excluded from net (loss) income as these amounts are recorded directly as an adjustment to
stockholders’ equity. Our other comprehensive (loss) income is comprised of unrealized holding gains and losses on our available for sale
marketable securities.
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Barrett Business Services, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

1.  Summary of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Statements of cash flows
Interest paid during 2014, 2013 and 2012 did not materially differ from interest expense.
Income taxes paid by the Company in 2014, 2013 and 2012 totaled $3.3 million, $9.0 million and $3.3 million, respectively.

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for each year using the
treasury method. Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential effects of the exercise of outstanding stock options. Basic and diluted
shares outstanding are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Weighted average number of basic shares outstanding 7,160 7,105 7,723
Effect of dilutive securities 0 292 140
Weighted average number of diluted shares outstanding 7,160 7,397 7,863

As a result of the net loss for the year ended December 31, 2014, 227,000 potential common shares have been excluded from the
calculation of diluted loss per share because their effect would be anti-dilutive.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2014 presentation. Such reclassifications had no impact on the
Company’s financial condition, operating results, cash flows, working capital or stockholder’s equity.

Accounting estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting periods. Management bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Estimates are used for carrying values of marketable securities, allowance for
doubtful accounts, deferred income taxes, carrying values for goodwill and property and equipment, accrued workers’ compensation liabilities
and safety incentive liabilities. Actual results may or may not differ from such estimates.
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1.

Summary of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014-09 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, which will supersede nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP. The standard’s core
principle is that a company will recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The new standard is effective for the
Company on January 1, 2017. Early application is not permitted. The standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative
effect transition method. The Company is evaluating the effect that ASU 2014-09 will have on its consolidated financial statements and
related disclosures. The Company has not yet selected a transition method or determined the effect of the standard on its ongoing financial
reporting.

In September 2014, the FASB issued new accounting guidance on disclosure of uncertainties about an entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The new guidance requires an entity’s management to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are issued, and if so, disclose that fact. Management is also required to evaluate and disclose whether its plans
alleviate that doubt. The guidance is effective for us in 2017 and will be applicable to both annual and interim reporting periods. We do not
expect the adoption of this guidance to have an impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Stock Repurchase

Effective March 28, 2012, the Company repurchased 2,485,929 shares of the Company’s common stock held by the Estate of William

W. Sherertz and 500,000 common shares held by Nancy Sherertz. Mr. Sherertz, a founder and former president and CEO of the Company,
died January 20, 2011. Nancy Sherertz is also a founder of the Company. The common shares were repurchased at a price of $20 per share,
representing total consideration of $59.7 million. The Company used a combination of $24.9 million in cash and issued 34,800 shares of
Series A Nonconvertible, Non-Voting Redeemable Preferred Stock with a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share. Additionally, the
Company incurred professional and legal fees totaling $514,000 related to the transaction.

Effective September 21, 2012, the Company redeemed all of the outstanding shares of its Series A Nonconvertible, Non-Voting Redeemable
Preferred Stock for $34.8 million using a combination of cash on hand and availability under a new revolving credit facility provided by its
principal bank. By redeeming the preferred stock within six months of issuance, the Company avoided having to pay a 5% semi-annual
dividend of approximately $870,000 due September 28, 2012.
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3.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Concentration of Credit Risk

All of our financial instruments are recognized in our consolidated balance sheet. Carrying values approximate fair value of most financial
assets and liabilities. The fair value of restricted marketable securities consisting primarily of certificates of deposits, money market funds,
municipal bonds, U.S. treasury bills and corporate bonds is recorded at amortized cost, which approximates fair value for similar
instruments. The interest rates on our restricted marketable security investments approximate current market rates for these types of
investments; therefore, the recorded value of the restricted marketable securities approximates fair value.

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentration of credit risk consist primarily of temporary cash investments, marketable
securities, restricted marketable securities and trade accounts receivable. We limit investment of temporary cash investments and
marketable securities to financial institutions with high credit ratings, corporate bonds and to investments in governmental debt instruments.
Credit risk on trade receivables is minimized as a result of the large and diverse nature of our customer base.
At December 31, 2014, we had significant concentrations of credit risk as follows:

. Marketable securities—$137.6 million, at fair value, in certificates of deposit.

. Marketable securities—$50.1 million, at fair value, in money market funds.

. Marketable securities—$21.7 million, at fair value, in VRDN.

. Marketable securities—$8.2 million, at fair value, in municipal bonds.

. Marketable securities—$5.7 million, at fair value, in corporate bonds.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

Factors used in determining the fair value of our financial assets and liabilities are summarized into three broad categories:
. Level 1—quoted prices in active markets for identical securities;

. Level 2—other significant observable inputs, including quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, prepayment speeds,
credit risk, etc.; and

. Level 3—significant unobservable inputs, including our own assumptions in determining fair value.

The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with investing in those
securities.

F-17



Table of Contents

Barrett Business Services, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

In determining the fair value of our financial assets, the Company predominately uses the market approach. In determining the fair value of
all its certificates of deposit, money market funds, U.S. treasuries, municipal bonds, corporate bonds, and variable rate demand notes
classified as Level 2, the Company utilizes the non-binding quotes provided by our three investment brokers. We receive one non-binding
broker quote for each financial asset as of the balance sheet date. To value the Level 2 assets, our investment brokers use proprietary multi-
dimensional pricing models that include a variety of inputs, including quoted prices for identical or similar assets in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, interest rates and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals,
volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss severities, credit risks and default rates that are observable at commonly quoted intervals. There were
no assets or liabilities where Level 3 valuation techniques were used and there were no assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-

recurring basis.
Marketable securities consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Gross
Unrealized Gross
Gains Recorded Unrealized Recorded
Cost (Losses) Basis Cost (Losses) Basis
Current:
Available-for-sale:
VRDN $21,670 $ 0 $ 21,670 $10,000 $ 0 $ 10,000
Certificates of deposit 8,330 43) 8,287 0 0 0
Corporate bonds 0 0 0 9,800 (13) 9,787
$30,000 $ (43) $ 29,957 $19,800 $ (13) $ 19,787
Long term:
Available-for-sale:
Municipal bonds $ 3,843 $ 7 $ 3,850 $ 4,074 $ 7) $ 4,057
Corporate bonds 2,153 3) 2,150 1,879 (27) 1,852
Certificates of deposit 14,944 (14) 14,930 0 0 0
$20,940 $ (10) $ 20,930 $ 5,953 $ (44) $ 5,909
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4. Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

The Company'’s restricted marketable securities component of restricted marketable securities and workers’ compensation deposits

consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Gross
Unrealized Gross Fair
Gains Recorded Unrealized Recorded Value
Cost (Losses) Basis Cost Gains Basis Category
Current:
Available-for-sale:
Money market funds held in
trust $ 3,776 $ 0 $ 3,776 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 2
$ 3,776 $ 0 $ 3,776 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Long term:
Available-for-sale:
Money market funds held in
trust $46,310 $ 0 $ 46,310 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 2
Municipal bonds 4,352 21 4,373 4,742 10 4,752 2
Corporate bonds 3,540 3) 3,537 2,849 5 2,854 2
U.S. treasuries 3,963 0 3,963 2,787 0 2,787 1
$58,165 $ 18 $ 58,183 $10,378 $ 15 $ 10,393
The Company’s long term restricted certificates of deposit are summarized as follows (in thousands):
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Gross Gross Fair
Unrealized Recorded Unrealized Recorded Value
Cost Gains Basis Cost Gains Basis Category
Restricted certificates of
deposit $114,335 $ 0 $ 114,335 $12,789 $ 0 $ 12,789 2
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5.

Property, Equipment and Software
Property, equipment and software consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2014 2013
Buildings $ 13,004 $ 11,158
Office furniture and fixtures 6,706 5,548
Computer hardware and software 12,949 11,396
Aircraft 4,668 4,617
37,327 32,719
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (16,142) (13,660)
21,185 19,059
Land 1,490 1,490
$ 22,675 $ 20,549

Workers’ Compensation Claims

The Company is a self-insured employer with respect to workers’ compensation coverage for all of its employees (including employees co-
employed through our client service agreements) working in California, Oregon, Maryland, Delaware and Colorado, except as described
below. The Company’s ability to self-insure in California ended on December 31, 2014, as described in more detail below. In the state of
Washington, state law allows only the Company’s staffing services and internal management employees to be covered under the Company’s
self-insured workers’ compensation program. Additionally, the Company operates a wholly owned fully licensed insurance company, Ecole
Insurance Company (“Ecole”), in Arizona to provide workers’ compensation coverage to our employees in Arizona.

To manage our financial exposure, in the event of catastrophic injuries or fatalities, the Company maintains excess workers’ compensation
insurance through our wholly owned captive insurance company, Associated Insurance Company for Excess (“AICE”), with a per occurrence
retention of $5.0 million, except in Maryland and Colorado, where our per occurrence retention is $1.0 million and $2.0 million, respectively.
AICE maintains excess workers’ compensation insurance coverage with ACE Group (“ACE”), between $5.0 million and $15.0 million per
occurrence, except in Maryland, where coverage with ACE is between $1.0 million and $25.0 million per occurrence, and in Colorado, where
the coverage with ACE is between $2.0 million and statutory limits per occurrence. Prior to December 1, 2012, similar excess workers’
compensation coverage was through American International Group. The Company continues to evaluate the financial capacity of its insurers
to assess the recoverability of the related insurer receivables.

The Company has provided a total of $216.0 million and $112.4 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, as an estimated future
liability for unsettled workers’ compensation claims liabilities. The estimated liability for unsettled workers’
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Workers’ Compensation Claims (Continued)

compensation claims represents management’s best estimate based upon an actuarial valuation provided by a third party actuary at
December 31, 2014 and 2013. Included in the claims liabilities are case reserve estimates for reported losses, plus additional amounts
based on projections for incurred but not reported claims and anticipated increases in case reserve estimates. Also included in these
estimates are amounts for unallocated loss adjustment expenses, including legal costs. These estimates are continually reviewed and
adjustments to liabilities are reflected in current operating results as they become known.

Our workers’ compensation claims liabilities do not represent an exact calculation of liability, but instead represent management’s best
estimate, generally utilizing actuarial expertise and projection techniques, at a given accounting date. The process of estimating unpaid
claims and claim adjustment expense involves a high degree of judgment and is subject to a number of variables. These variables can be
affected by both internal and external events such as changes in claims handling procedures, changes in individuals involved in the reserve
estimation process, legal trends and legislative changes.

We have undertaken a number of steps during the past two years to improve our workers’ compensation claims administration practices.
These steps include hiring additional claim administrators in response to our business growth, and working to close litigated claims more
quickly.

Beginning in late 2013, as part of our efforts to improve our claims handling practices, the Company initiated a specific case reserve study
on its open workers’ compensation claims with injury dates in 2012 and earlier. The specific case reserve study resulted in moving dollars
from the general reserve of incurred but not reported claims and future loss development into specific case reserves for individual claims.
This process was intended to provide management with a more accurate estimate of the ultimate total cost of each claim at a detailed level.
Additionally, in mid-2013, the Company initiated a change to its individual claim handling practices by recording specific case reserves on
new claims at amounts that include all of the anticipated future costs and working to close claims more quickly with the goal of reducing the
ultimate cost of the claims.

In May 2014, the Company engaged an actuarial consultant to assist management in studying selected historical claims experience and the
impact of the change in its claims handling process. During the third quarter of 2014, the Company engaged a new actuary to assist
management in determining its best estimate of the Company’s workers’ compensation liability. Based on the work of the new actuary and a
thorough review of the Company’s claims handling practices and the results of the work performed by the actuarial consultant engaged
during the second quarter of 2014, management reached the conclusion in October 2014 that, based on actuarial methods, the estimate of
workers’ compensation liability should reflect a significant increase for the potential development of prior period claims. The Company
recorded total workers’ compensation
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Workers’ Compensation Claims (Continued)

claims expense of $101.2 million during the third quarter of 2014, including a $61.3 million change in estimate relating to prior period claims.
Management’s primary considerations in arriving at its estimate of workers’ compensation liability include the significant increase in the
Company’s business in recent years, the potential for unexpected future adverse development of open claims, and the increasing complexity
and uncertainty surrounding healthcare costs.

Included in the foregoing liabilities are insured claims that will be paid by the Company’s former excess workers’ compensation insurer and
for which the Company has reported a receivable from the insurer for the insured claims liability. Insured claims totaled $781,000 and
$768,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Liabilities incurred for work-related employee fatalities and for severely injured workers, as determined by the state in which the accident
occurred, are recorded either at an agreed lump-sum settlement amount or the net present value of future fixed and determinable payments
over the actuarially determined remaining life expectancy of the beneficiary, discounted at a rate that approximates a long-term, high-quality
corporate bond rate. We present our accrued liabilities for workers’ compensation claims on a gross basis along with a corresponding
receivable from our insurers, as we are the primary obligor for payment of the related insured claims.

At December 31, 2014, our long-term workers’ compensation claims liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet included
$271,000 for work-related fatalities. The aggregate undiscounted payout amount related to the catastrophic injuries and fatalities is $360,000.
The discount rates applied to the discounted liabilities range from 4.25% to 9.00%. These rates represented the then-current rates for high
quality long-term debt securities available at the date of loss with maturities equal to the length of the payout period to the beneficiaries. The
actuarially determined payout periods to the beneficiaries range from 7 to 32 years.

In February 2014, the Company entered into a workers’ compensation insurance arrangement with ACE to provide coverage to BBSI
employees in California beginning in the first quarter of 2014. The current agreement is effective through January 2016 with the potential for
annual renewals thereafter.

The arrangement, typically known as a fronted program, provides BBSI a licensed, admitted insurance carrier in California to issue policies
on behalf of BBSI without the intention of transferring any of the worker's compensation risk for the first $5.0 million per claim. The risk of
loss up to the first $5.0 million per claim is retained by BBSI through an indemnity agreement.

During the first quarter of 2014, the Company made an initial deposit of $20.0 million into a trust account established between the Company
and ACE related to the new ACE fronted insurance program. The Company began making monthly payments in April 2014
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Workers’ Compensation Claims (Continued)

into the trust account to be set aside for the payment of future claims. The balance in the trust account as of December 31, 2014 totaled
$50.1 million. The trust account balance is included as a component of the current and long-term restricted marketable securities and
workers’ compensation deposits in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

The states of California, Oregon, Maryland, Washington, Delaware and Colorado require us to maintain specified investment balances or
other financial instruments, totaling $198.5 million at December 31, 2014 and $72.9 million at December 31, 2013, to cover potential claims
losses. In partial satisfaction of these requirements, at December 31, 2014, we have provided surety bonds and standby letters of credit
totaling $194.9 million. The investments are included in restricted marketable securities and workers’ compensation deposits in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. During the fourth quarter of 2014, the state of California increased the Company’s surety
deposit requirement to $190.6 million (which is included in the total $194.9 million of surety bonds and standby letters of credit), which the
Company satisfied through the posting of third party issued surety bonds which are backed by a $114.3 million letter of credit. In conjunction
with this letter of credit, the Company posted $114.3 million of certificates of deposit with Wells Fargo as collateral, this amount is included
in long-term assets on the consolidated balance sheet.

The following table summarizes the aggregate workers’ compensation reserve activity (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Balance at January 1,
Workers’ compensation claims liabilities $112,444 $ 70,564 $51,193
Claims expense accrual:
Current year 97,883 63,822 38,386
Prior years 67,101 23,445 12,344
164,984 87,267 50,730
Claims payments related to:
Current year 13,183 10,586 6,746
Prior years 48,263 34,801 24,613
61,446 45,387 31,359
Balance at December 31,
Workers’ compensation claims liabilities $215,982 $112,444 $70,564
Incurred but not reported (IBNR) $113,984 $ 69,611 $47,992
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Revolving Credit Facility and Long-Term Debt

Effective December 29, 2014, the Company entered into a new credit agreement (the “Agreement”) with its principal bank, Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association (the “Bank”). The Agreement provides for a $40.0 million term loan maturing December 31, 2016, as well as a $14.0
million revolving credit line, with a $5.0 million sublimit for unsecured standby letters of credit. The Company had no outstanding borrowings
on its revolving credit line at December 31, 2014. The Agreement also provides for an increase to a total of $114.3 million in cash-secured
letters of credit to satisfy collateral requirements associated with various surety deposit requirements for workers’ compensation purposes in
the state of California. In conjunction with this letter of credit, the Company posted $114.3 million of certificates of deposit with Wells Fargo
as collateral, which is included in long-term assets on the consolidated balance sheet. The Agreement includes a non-refundable
commitment fee of $400,000, which is reported within prepaid expenses and other on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. The fee
will be amortized to interest expense ratably over the term of the loan.

The $40.0 million term loan with the Bank requires payments of $3.0 million on June 30, 2015, $7.0 million on September 30, 2015, $15.0
million on December 31, 2015, $5.0 million on June 30, 2016 and $5.0 million on September 30, 2016. The term loan bears interest at the
one month LIBOR plus 4.0%.

Advances under the revolving credit facility bear interest as selected by the Company of either (a) a daily floating rate of one month LIBOR
plus 2% or (b) a fixed rate of LIBOR plus 2.0% The Agreement also provides for an unused commitment fee of 0.35% per year on the
average dailyunused amount of the revolving credit facility, and a fee of 1.75% of the face amount of each letter of credit

The credit facility is collateralized by the Company’s accounts receivable and other rights to receive payment, general intangibles, inventory
and equipment.

The Agreement requires the satisfaction of certain financial covenants as follows:
. minimum Fixed Charge Coverage ratio of no less than 1.5:1.0, measured quarterly on a rolling four-quarter basis; and

. ratio of restricted and unrestricted cash and marketable securities to workers’ compensation and safety incentive liabilities of
at least 1.0:1.0, measured quarterly;

The Agreement includes certain additional covenants as follows:

. capital expenditures may not exceed a total of $5.0 million in 2015 and a total of $4.0 million in 2016 without the Bank’s prior
approval;
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. prohibition on incurring additional indebtedness without the prior approval of the Bank, other than up to $200,000 per year in
purchase money financing and the aggregate of all purchase money indebtedness does not exceed $400,000 at any time;

. prohibition on repurchases of the Company’s common stock; and

. continuation of quarterly cash dividends up to $0.22 per share so long as there is no default by the Company and payment
would not cause a default.

The Agreement also contains customary events of default. If an event of default under the Agreement occurs and is continuing, the Bank
may declare any outstanding obligations under the Agreement to be immediately due and payable. The Company was in compliance with all
applicable financial covenants at December 31, 2014.

Additionally, the Company maintains a term loan with the Bank with a current balance of approximately $5.1 million secured by the
Company'’s corporate office building in Vancouver, Washington. The term loan requires payment of monthly installments of $18,375, bearing
interest at the one month LIBOR plus 2.25%, with the unpaid principal balance due November 1, 2017.

8. 401(k) Savings Plan

We have a Section 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan for the benefit of our eligible employees. All staffing and management employees 21
years of age or older become eligible to participate in the savings plan upon completion of 1,000 hours of service in any consecutive 12-
month period following the initial date of employment. Employees covered under a PEO arrangement may participate in the plan at the sole
discretion of the PEO client. The determination of discretionary Company contributions to the plan, if any, is at the sole discretion of our
Board of Directors. No discretionary Company contributions were made to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

We make matching contributions to the 401(k) plan under a safe harbor provision, whereby the Company matches 100% of contributions by
management and staffing employees up to 3% of each participating employee’s annual compensation; and 50% of the employee’s
contributions up to an additional 2% of annual compensation. We made $885,000, $734,000 and $610,000 in matching contributions during
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Participants’ interests in Company safe harbor contributions to the plan are fully vested when made.
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9. Commitments and Contingencies

Lease commitments
We lease office space for our branch offices under operating lease agreements that require minimum annual payments as follows (in

thousands):
Year ending
December 31,
2015 $ 3,502
2016 2,874
2017 2,233
2018 1,349
2019 666
2020 60
Thereafter 0

Rent expense was approximately $3.7 million, $3.2 million, and $2.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

10. Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes from continuing operations is as follows (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Current:
Federal $ (8,022) $6,386 $5,378
State (741) 1,225 685
(8,763) 7,611 6,063
Deferred:
Federal (10,237) (519) 341
State 747 (82) (76)
(9,490) (601) 265
Total (benefit) provision $(18,253) $7,010 $6,328
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following components (in thousands):

December 31,

2014 2013
Gross deferred income tax assets:
Workers’ compensation claims liabilities $ 12,168 $ 6,985
Safety incentives payable 3,782 3,529
Allowance for doubtful accounts 118 94
Tax effect of unrealized losses, net 856 959
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward 1,840 0
State credit carryforward 969 805
State loss carryforward 568 0
Workers’ opportunity tax credit and EZ credit carryforward 3,162 0
Other 605 504
24,068 12,876
Less valuation allowance 1,078 1,763
22,990 11,113
Gross deferred income tax liabilities:
Tax depreciation in excess of book depreciation (3,770) (2,793)
Tax amortization of goodwill (11,588) (10,178)
(15,358) (12,971)
Net deferred income tax assets (liabilities) $ 7,632 $ (1,858)

The effective tax rate for continuing operations differed from the U.S. statutory federal tax rate due to the following:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Statutory federal tax rate (35.0)% 35.0% 35.0%
State taxes, net of federal benefit .2 3.4 4
Valuation allowance on capital loss carryforward and state tax credit carryforward (.2) (.4) 2.3
Adjustment for final positions on filed returns (.7) (1.5) (.3)
Nondeductible expenses and other, net 2.2 .8 4.
Federal tax-exempt interest income (.2) (.2) (.4)
Federal and state tax credits (6.6) 8.9) (8.9)
40.3)% 28.2% 32.5%

The Company has established a valuation allowance for certain deferred tax assets due to uncertainties regarding the Company’s ability to
generate future taxable investment gains in order to utilize certain investment impairment losses and investment loss carry
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forwards for tax purposes. The realization of a significant portion of net deferred tax assets is based in part on our estimates of the timing of
reversals of certain temporary differences and on the generation of taxable income before such reversals. At December 31 2014, we
maintained a valuation allowance for approximately $1.1 million of federal and state tax benefits that are not expected to be utilized.

Under ASC 740, “Income Taxes,” management evaluates the realizability of the deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis under a “more-likely
than not” standard. As part of this evaluation, management reviews all evidence both positive and negative to determine if a valuation
allowance is needed. One component of this analysis is to determine whether the Company was in a cumulative loss position for the most
recent 12 quarters. Despite the increase to the workers’ compensation reserve in the third quarter of 2014, the Company was in a cumulative
income position for the 12 quarters ended December 31, 2014.

Management’s review of positive evidence included the existence of federal and California taxable income in eligible carryback years,
reversal of temporary items, and projection of future taxable income. The projection of future taxable income was a significant factor in
management’s determination that no additional valuation allowance was required at December 31, 2014. Management’s projections of
taxable income are based on the existence of signed annual contracts with the Company’s PEO customer base, objective evidence that the
Company’s customers are retained at a high rate over long periods, and objective evidence that recent price increase initiatives are being
accepted by the Company’s customer base.

Management has continued to improve the Company’s procedures in many areas of its self-insured workers’ compensation program over the
past two years as described in Note 6. The results of these efforts have improved management’s ability to project workers’ compensation
expense. Management will monitor the need for an additional valuation allowance at each quarter in the future and, if the negative evidence
outweighs the positive evidence, an allowance will be recorded.

The Company is subject to Income taxes in U.S. federal and multiple state and local tax jurisdictions. In the major jurisdictions where the
Company operates, it is generally no longer subject to income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2010. As of December 31,
2014 and 2013, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits.

A portion of the consolidated income the Company generates is not subject to state income tax. Depending on the percentage of this income
to total consolidated income, the Company’s state effective rate can fluctuate from expectations. As a result of the mix of income subject to
state income tax, total state tax expense decreased by approximately $4,000, $284,000 and $498,000 in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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At December 31, 2014, the Company had capital loss carry forward of approximately $2.1 million. The carry forward will expire unless utilized
in tax years on or before December 31, 2015. At December 31, 2014, the Company had federal general business tax credit carry forwards of
approximately $3.2 million. The carry forwards will expire unless utilized in tax years on or before December 31, 2024. The Company also
had an alternative minimum tax credit carry forward of approximately $1.8 million. The credit carry forward has an indefinite life and will not
expire until utilized.

At December 31, 2014, the Company had state tax credit carry forwards of approximately $1.5 million. The carryforwards expire unless
utilized in tax years on or before December 31, 2024. At December 31, 2014, the Company had a California net operating loss carry forward
of approximately $6.7 million. The carry forward will expire unless utilized in tax years on or before December 31, 2034. In addition, the
Company had a total of approximately $3.9 million in net operating loss carry forwards from other states that will expire unless utilized in tax
years between December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2034.

Stock Incentive Plans

The Company’s 2009 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2009 Plan”), which provides for stock-based awards to Company employees, non-employee
directors and outside consultants or advisors, was approved by shareholders on May 13, 2009. No stock-based awards have been issued to
outside consultants or advisors. The number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the 2009 Plan is 1,000,000, of which
the aggregate number of shares for which incentive stock options may be granted under the Plan is 900,000. No new grants of stock options
may be made under the Company’s 2003 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2003 Plan”). At December 31, 2014, there were option awards covering
367,533 shares outstanding under the 2009 Plan, together with the 2003 Plan and its predecessor, the 1993 Stock Incentive Plan.
Outstanding options under all the plans generally expire ten years after the date of grant. Options are generally exercisable in four equal
annual installments beginning one year after the date of grant. At December 31, 2014, there are 126,846 restricted stock units outstanding.

The Company recognizes compensation expense for options awarded under its stock incentive plans based on the grant-date fair value.
Compensation expense is attributed to earnings using the straight-line method over the requisite service period.
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A summary of the status of the Company’s stock options at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, together with changes during the periods
then ended, is presented below:

Weighted
Number average
of exercise
options price
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 671,294
Options granted at market price 7,500 17.55
Options exercised (131,997) 13.98
Options cancelled (8,100) 13.85
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 538,697
Options exercised (138,298) 13.53
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 400,399
Options exercised (32,866) 13.24
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 367,533
Available for grant at December 31, 2014 481,999
The following tables presents information on stock options exercised and outstanding:
Year Ended
December 31,
(in thousands, except share data) 2014 2013
Intrinsic value of options exercised in the period $1,025 $6,089
Weighted
Weighted Average
Number Average Remaining Aggregate
of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
($ in thousands, except share data) Shares Price Term (Years) Value
Stock options:
Outstanding December 31, 2014 367,533 $ 1522 5.25 $ 4,478
Exercisable at December 31, 2014 221,059 14.45 4.55 2,847

The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options represents the difference between the Company’s closing stock price at the end of the period
and the relevant exercise price multiplied by the number of options outstanding at the end of the period at each such price.

F-30



Table of Contents

Barrett Business Services, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. Stock Incentive Plans (Continued)

The fair value of stock option awards as determined under the Black-Scholes option-pricing model was estimated with the following weighted-
average assumptions:

2012
Expected volatility 65.9%
Risk free interest rate 2.9%
Expected dividend yield 2.5%
Expected term 7.3 years
Weighted average fair value per share $ 9.08

There were no options granted during 2014 or 2013. There were no options granted during 2012 below market price.

During 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company granted 69,371, 44,970 and 47,500 restricted stock units at a weighted average grant date fair
value of $50.47, $50.28 and $21.44 per share, respectively, which represented the closing price of the Company’s stock on the date of grant.
The restricted stock units vest in four equal annual installments beginning one year following the date of grant.

The following table presents restricted stock unit activity:

Weighted Average

Grant Date

Units Fair Value
Non-vested at December 31, 2011 0 $ 0.00
Granted 47,500 21.44
Non-vested at December 31, 2012 47,500 21.44
Granted 44,970 50.28
Vested (10,302) 21.44
Cancelled/Forfeited (1,573) 21.44
Non-vested at December 31, 2013 80,595 37.53
Granted 69,371 50.47
Vested (15,253) 33.40
Cancelled/Forfeited (7,867) 34.90
Non-vested at December 31, 2014 126,846 44.99
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The following table summarizes stock-based compensation expense related to stock option and restricted stock unit awards (in thousands):
Year Ended
December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Stock-based compensation expense included in selling, general and administrative expenses $1,699 $1,016 $695
Deferred income taxes 675 404 272
Stock-based compensation expense related to stock options and restricted stock units, net
of tax $1,024 $ 612 $423
As of December 31, 2014, unrecognized compensation expense related to stock options and restricted stock units was $5.6 million with a
weighted average remaining contractual period of 3.15 years.
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2014:
Options outstanding Options exercisable
Weighted-
Weighted- average Exercisable Weighted-
Number average remaining at average
of exercise contractual December 31, exercise
Exercise price range shares price life (years) 2014 price
$2.01-$ 2.58 2,250 $ 2.29 Indefinite 2,250 $ 2.29
8.82- 17.55 365,283 15.29 5.3 218,809 14.57
367,533 15.22 221,059 14.45
12. Stock Repurchase Program

13.

The Company maintains a stock repurchase program approved by the Board of Directors, which authorizes the repurchase of shares from
time to time in open market purchases. The repurchase program currently allows for the repurchase of approximately 1.1 million additional

shares as of December 31, 2014.

During 2014, we repurchased 87,200 shares at a weighted average price of $42.16. No share repurchases were made under the repurchase

program during 2013 and 2012.
Litigation

On November 6, 2014, plaintiffs in Michael Arciaga, et al. v. Barrett Business Services, Inc., et al., filed an action in the United States

District Court for the Western District of Washington against the Company and Michael L. Elich and James D. Miller, the Company’s Chief

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, respectively. The action

F-32



Table of Contents

Barrett Business Services, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13.

Litigation (Continued)

purports to be a class action brought on behalf of all Company stockholders alleging violations of the federal securities laws. The claims
arise from the decline in the market price for the Company’s common stock following announcement of a charge for increased workers
compensation reserves expense. The lawsuit seeks compensatory damages (in an amount to be determined at trial), plus interest, and costs
and expenses (including attorney fees and expert fees).

On November 13, 2014, a second purported shareholder class action was filed in the United States District Court for the Western District of
Washington, entitled Christopher P. Carnes, et al. v. Barrett Business Services, Inc., et al. The Carnes complaint names the same
defendants as the Arciaga case and asserts similar claims for relief.

Similarly, on November 17, 2014, a third purported shareholder class action was filed in the United States District Court for the Western
District of Washington, entitled Shiva Stein, et al. v. Barrett Business Services, Inc., et al. The Stein complaint names the same defendants
as the Arciaga and Carnes cases and asserts similar claims for relief.

On February 25, 2015, the court ordered consolidation of the three cases, and any new or other cases involving the same subject matter,
into a single action for pretrial purposes. The court also appointed the Painters & Allied Trades District Council No. 35 Pension and Annuity
Funds as the lead plaintiff. Discovery has not been undertaken as it is automatically stayed under the federal Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act.

On February 27, 2015, the Company received a letter from counsel for an alleged stockholder accusing each of the Company’s directors and
officers with having breached his fiduciary duties of loyalty and good faith based on the same facts as those alleged in the three lawsuits
described above, as well as that certain officers and directors sold shares of the Company’s stock while in possession of material non-public
information. The letter asserts that the Company has sustained and continues to sustain damages, including the costs and expenses
incurred in connection with the Company’s reserve strengthening process, reserve study and consultants, the cost of stock repurchases in
October 2014, compensation paid to the Company’s officers, and costs of negotiating the Company’s credit facility with its principal lender
The letter demands that the Company’s Board of Directors take action against each of the Company’s officers and directors to recover these
damages and the proceeds of sales of stock by the officers and directors during 2013 and 2014. The letter states that if the Board does not
take these actions within a reasonable period, the stockholder will commence a shareholder derivative action on behalf of the Company.

Management is unable to estimate the probability, or the potential range, of loss arising from these legal actions.
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The Company is subject to other legal proceedings and claims, which arise in the ordinary course of our business. In the opinion of
management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to currently pending or threatened actions is not expected to materially affect the
consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Company.

14. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share amounts and market price per share)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Year ended December 31, 2014
Revenues $135,140 $151,069 $174,959 $175,016
Cost of revenues 125,834 121,217 217,741 140,975
Net (loss) income (3,583) 7,283 (37,818) 7,034
Basic (loss) earnings per share (0.50) 1.02 (5.27) 0.99
Diluted (loss) earnings per share (0.50) 0.98 (5.27) 0.97
Common stock market prices:
High 102.20 63.19 63.45 45.38
Low 57.82 41.96 39.47 18.25
Year ended December 31, 2013
Revenues $111,551 $128,798 $147,971 $144,524
Cost of revenues 103,240 105,072 117,785 120,223
Net (loss) income (2,549) 5,886 8,994 5,561
Basic (loss) earnings per share (0.36) 0.83 1.26 0.78
Diluted (loss) earnings per share (0.36) 0.80 1.21 0.74
Common stock market prices:
High 53.27 62.82 73.49 98.00
Low 38.15 48.50 48.08 66.33
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 16, 2015

BARRETT BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.
Registrant

By: /s/ James D. Miller

James D. Miller
Vice President-Finance, Treasurer and Secretary

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the

Registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 16th day of March, 2015.

Principal Executive Officer and Director:
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Exhibit 4.7

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED
THIRD PARTY SECURITY AGREEMENT:
SPECIFIC RIGHTS TO PAYMENT

THIS SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED THIRD PARTY SECURITY AGREEMENT: SPECIFIC RIGHTS TO PAYMENT (“Agreement”) is
entered into as of December 29, 2014, by and between ASSOCIATED INSURANCE COMPANY FOR EXCESS, an Arizona corporation (“Owner”), and
WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (“Bank”). This Agreement amends and restates that certain Amended and Restated Third Party Security
Agreement: Specific Rights to Payment between Owner and Bank dated May 16,2014 (the “Existing Third Party Security Agreement”).

Recitals

A. All of the recitals set forth in the Existing Third Party Security Agreement are incorporated herein by this reference (collectively, the “Existing
Recitals”). Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given those terms in the Existing Recitals.

B. In the third quarter of 2014, Borrower recorded an additional increase to its self-insured workers’ compensation reserve in the approximate amount
of Eighty Million Dollars ($80,000,000.00) (the “Reserve Increase”).

C. As aresult of the Reserve Increase, among other things, (i) the Office of Self Insurance Plans requires that Borrower increase its security deposit with
respect to the WC Payment Obligations from One Hundred Four Million Seven Hundred Seventeen Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-One Dollars
($104,717,331.00) to One Hundred Ninety Million Five Hundred Fifty Seven Thousand Seven Hundred Sixty-Seven Dollars ($190,557,767.00) (the “2015
Security Deposit™), and (ii) the Arizona Department requires that Borrower increase both the capitalization of Owner and the dollar amount of Owner’s
reserves to satisfy Owner’s obligations under the Insurance Policies.

D. In the event Borrower fails to provide the 2015 Security Deposit, Borrower may not be permitted to operate in the State of California, which would
reasonably be expected to result in a material adverse effect on the revenue, business, operations and prospects of Owner.

E. Any drawings on the 2015 Security Deposit by the Self Insurance Plans will result in a dollar for dollar reduction in obligations that would otherwise
be payable by Owner under the Insurance Policies to or for the benefit of Borrower for purposes of satisfying the WC Payment Obligations.

F. By letter dated December 16, 2014, Borrower requested approval from the Arizona Department to increase the dollar amount of Owner’s collateral
support for the purpose of satisfying the 2015 Security Deposit by Ninety-Three Million Four Hundred Thousand Dollars ($93,400,000.00) (the “Increase
Request”).

G. By letter dated December 22, 2014, the Arizona Department approved the Increase Request.

H. To secure Borrower’s obligations for the benefit of Borrower and Owner to the Office of Self Insurance Plans, Borrower has obtained or caused to be
issued for the account of
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Borrower the following surety bonds (each a “Security Bond” and collectively, the “Security Bonds”) in an aggregate amount equal to the 2015 Security
Deposit: (i) Surety Bond No. SUR0025266 in the penal sum of Twenty-Five Million Dollars ($25,000,000.00), issued by Argonaut, as surety; (ii) Surety
Bond No. 800001601 in the penal sum of Twenty-Five Million Dollars ($25,000,000.00), issued by Atlantic, as surety; (iii) Surety Bond No. K0861765A in
the penal sum of Fifty-Four Million Seven Hundred Seventeen Thousand Three Hundred Thirty-One Dollars ($54,717,331.00), issued by Westchester, as
surety; and (iv) Surety Bond No. K08617673 in the penal sum of Eighty-Five Million Eight Hundred Forty Thousand Four Hundred Thirty-Six Dollars
($85,840,436.00), issued by Westchester, as surety.

I. Effective as of the date of this Agreement, and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Credit Agreement, as collateral to secure
the Surety Bonds, Bank is willing to amend certain standby letters of credit that are currently issued and outstanding to increase the dollar amounts thereof as
follows (each, as so amended, an “Insurance Letter of Credit” and collectively, the “Insurance Letters of Credit”): (i) increase the existing standby letter of
credit issued to Argonaut from Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000.00) to Fifteen Million Dollars ($15,000,000.00); (ii) increase the existing standby letter of
credit issued to Atlantic from Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000.00) to Fifteen Million Dollars ($15,000,000.00); and (iii) increase the existing standby letter
of credit issued to Westchester from Ten Million Nine Hundred Forty-Three Thousand Four Hundred Sixty-Six and 20/100 Dollars ($10,943,466.20) to
Eighty-Four Million Three Hundred Thirty-Four Thousand Six Hundred Sixty and 20/100 Dollars ($84,334,660.20).

J. Owner materially benefits both directly and indirectly from Bank’s issuance of the Insurance Letters of Credit.
K. As of the date hereof, Owner is solvent and, following the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein, will continue to be solvent.

L. To effect the transactions contemplated herein, including Owner’s grant of additional collateral to Bank to secure Borrower’s obligations with
respect to the Insurance Letters of Credit, Bank and Owner have agreed to amend and restate the terms and conditions set forth in the Existing Third Party
Security Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which the
parties hereby acknowledge, the parties agree as follows:

1. GRANT OF SECURITY INTEREST. As security for the payment of all Indebtedness of Borrower to Bank arising under or in connection with the
Insurance Letters of Credit in the amount of One Hundred Fourteen Million Three Hundred Thirty-Four Thousand Sixty Hundred Sixty and 20/100 Dollars
($114,334,660.20) and all extensions, renewals or modifications thereof, and restatements or substitutions therefor issued subject to the terms of the Credit
Agreement and that certain Standby Letter of Credit Agreement (Credit Agreement/Loan Agreement Version) between Borrower and Bank, dated as of
September 18,2012, as may be amended from time to time (the “Letter of Credit Agreement”), Owner hereby grants and transfers, and reconfirms its prior
grant and transfer, to Bank a security interest in the following accounts, deposit accounts, chattel paper (whether electronic or tangible), instruments,
promissory notes, documents, general intangibles, payment intangibles, software, letter of credit rights, health-care insurance receivables and other rights to
payment (collectively called “Collateral”):

Deposit account number 5259896099 at Bank (whether held in Owner or Borrower’s name or as a Bank collateral account for the benefit of Owner or
Borrower, any sub-account thereunder or consolidated therewith, and all renewals, replacements or substitutions therefore, including any account
resulting from a renumbering or other administrative re-identification thereof, “Account No. 1”’) and all amounts from time to time on deposit in
Account No. 1 and all interest thereon; and
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Deposit account number 6943748548 at Bank (whether held in Owner or Borrower’s name or as a Bank collateral account for the benefit of Owner or
Borrower, any sub-account thereunder or consolidated therewith, and all renewals, replacements or substitutions therefore, including any account
resulting from a renumbering or other administrative re-identification thereof, “Account No. 2”) and all amounts from time to time on deposit in
Account No. 2 and all interest thereon;

Deposit account number 9666681722 at Bank (whether held in Owner or Borrower’s name or as a Bank collateral account for the benefit of Owner or
Borrower, any sub-account thereunder or consolidated therewith, and all renewals, replacements or substitutions therefore, including any account
resulting from a renumbering or other administrative re-identification thereof, “Account No. 3” and, together with Account No. 1 and Account No. 2,
the “Accounts”) and all amounts from time to time on deposit in Account No. 3 and all interest thereon;

and all renewals thereof, including all securities, guaranties, warranties, indemnity agreements, insurance policies, supporting obligations and other
agreements pertaining to the same or the property described therein, together with whatever is receivable or received when any of the Collateral or proceeds
thereof are sold, collected, exchanged or otherwise disposed of, whether such disposition is voluntary or involuntary, including without limitation, all rights
to payment, including returned premiums, with respect to any insurance relating to any of the foregoing, and all rights to payment with respect to any claim
or cause of action affecting or relating to any of the foregoing (hereinafter called “Proceeds”). The word “Indebtedness” is used herein in its most
comprehensive sense and includes any and all advances, debts, obligations and liabilities of Borrower, heretofore, now or hereafter made, incurred or created,
whether voluntary or involuntary and however arising, whether due or not due, absolute or contingent, liquidated or unliquidated, determined or
undetermined, including under any swap, derivative, foreign exchange, hedge, deposit, treasury management or other similar transaction or arrangement, and
whether Borrower may be liable individually or jointly with others, or whether recovery upon such Indebtedness may be or hereafter becomes unenforceable.

2. CONTINUING AGREEMENT; REVOCATION; OBLIGATION UNDER OTHER AGREEMENTS. This is a continuing agreement and all rights,
powers and remedies hereunder shall apply to all past, present and future Indebtedness of Borrower to Bank, including that arising under successive
transactions which shall either continue the Indebtedness, increase or decrease it, or from time to time create new Indebtedness after all or any prior
Indebtedness has been satisfied, and notwithstanding the death, incapacity, dissolution, liquidation or bankruptcy of Borrower or Owner or any other event or
proceeding affecting Borrower or Owner. This Agreement shall not apply to any new Indebtedness created after actual receipt by Bank of written notice of its
revocation as to such new Indebtedness; provided however, that loans or advances made by Bank to Borrower after revocation under commitments existing
prior to receipt by Bank of such revocation, and extensions, renewals or modifications, of any kind, of Indebtedness incurred by Borrower or committed by
Bank prior to receipt by Bank of such
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revocation, shall not be considered new Indebtedness. Any such notice must be sent to Bank by registered U.S. mail, postage prepaid, addressed to its office
at Commercial and Forest Products RCBO, MAC P6101-250, 1300 SW Fifth Avenue, Portland, Oregon 97201, or at such other address as Bank shall from
time to time designate. The obligations of Owner hereunder shall be in addition to any obligations of Owner under any other grants or pledges of security for
any liabilities or obligations of Borrower or any other person heretofore or hereafter given to Bank unless said other grants or pledges of security are
expressly modified or revoked in writing; and this Agreement shall not, unless expressly herein provided, affect or invalidate any such other grants or pledges
of security.

3. CONTROL OF THE ACCOUNTS. As of and after the date of this Agreement, Owner may not make debits to or withdrawals from the Accounts and
Owner shall have no access to the Accounts or to funds at any time on either deposit in the Accounts. Bank shall have the exclusive access to the Accounts
and to funds at any time on deposit in the Accounts; provided, however, that so long as no Event of Default has occurred, Bank shall pay interest on the funds
on deposit in the Accounts quarterly in arrears at the interest rate applicable to time deposits as determined by Bank from time in its sole discretion.

4. OBLIGATIONS JOINT AND SEVERAL; SEPARATE ACTIONS; WAIVER OF STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS; REINSTATEMENT OF LIABILITY.
The obligations hereunder are joint and several and independent of the obligations of Borrower, and a separate action or actions may be brought and
prosecuted against Owner whether action is brought against Borrower or any other person, or whether Borrower or any other person is joined in any such
action or actions. Owner acknowledges that this Agreement is absolute and unconditional, there are no conditions precedent to the effectiveness of this
Agreement, and this Agreement is in full force and effect and is binding on Owner as of the date written below, regardless of whether Bank obtains collateral
or any guaranties from others or takes any other action contemplated by Owner. Owner waives the benefit of any statute of limitations affecting Owner’s
liability hereunder or the enforcement thereof, and Owner agrees that any payment of any Indebtedness or other act which shall toll any statute of limitations
applicable thereto shall similarly operate to toll such statute of limitations applicable to Owner’s liability hereunder. The liability of Owner hereunder shall
be reinstated and revived and the rights of Bank shall continue if and to the extent that for any reason any amount at any time paid on account of any
Indebtedness secured hereby is rescinded or must be otherwise restored by Bank, whether as a result of any proceedings in bankruptcy or reorganization or
otherwise, all as though such amount had not been paid. The determination as to whether any amount so paid must be rescinded or restored shall be made by
Bank in its sole discretion; provided however, that if Bank chooses to contest any such matter at the request of Owner, Owner agrees to indemnify and hold
Bank harmless from and against all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees (to include outside counsel fees and all allocated costs of Bank’s
in-house counsel), expended or incurred by Bank in connection therewith, including without limitation, in any litigation with respect thereto.

5. OBLIGATIONS OF BANK. Any money received by Bank in respect of the Collateral may be deposited, at Bank’s option, into a non-interest bearing
account over which Owner shall have no control, and the same shall, for all purposes, be deemed Collateral hereunder.
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6. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.

(a) Owner represents and warrants to Bank that: (i) Owner’s legal name is exactly as set forth on the first page of this Agreement, and all of Owner’s
organizational documents or agreements delivered to Bank are complete and accurate in every respect; (ii) Owner is the owner and has possession or control
of'the Collateral and Proceeds; (iii) Owner has the exclusive right to grant a security interest in the Collateral and Proceeds; (iv) all Collateral and Proceeds
are genuine, free from liens, adverse claims, setoffs, default, prepayment, defenses and conditions precedent of any kind or character, except the lien created
hereby or as otherwise agreed to by Bank, or as heretofore disclosed by Owner to Bank, in writing; (v) all statements contained herein and, where applicable,
in the Collateral are true and complete in all material respects; (vi) no financing statement covering any of the Collateral or Proceeds, and naming any
secured party other than Bank, is on file in any public office; (vii) all persons appearing to be obligated on the Collateral and Proceeds have authority and
capacity to contract and are bound as they appear to be; (viii) all property subject to chattel paper has been properly registered and filed in compliance with
law and to perfect the interest of Owner in such property; and (ix) all Collateral and Proceeds comply with all applicable laws concerning form, content and
manner of preparation and execution, including where applicable Federal Reserve Regulation Z and any State consumer credit laws; (x) Owner is a
corporation, duly organized and validly existing and in good standing under the laws of Arizona, and is qualified or licensed to do business (and is in good
standing as a foreign corporation, if applicable) in all jurisdictions in which such qualification or licensing is required or in which the failure to so qualify or
to be so licensed could have a material adverse effect on Owner; (xi) this Agreement and each contract, instrument and other document required hereby or at
any time hereafter delivered to Bank in connection herewith have been duly authorized, and upon their execution and delivery in accordance with the
provisions hereof will constitute legal, valid and binding agreements and obligations of Owner, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms;

(xii) the execution, delivery and performance by Owner hereof and of each agreement, instrument and other documents required hereby or at any time
hereafter delivered to Bank do not violate any provision of any law or regulation, or contravene any provision of the Articles of Incorporate or By-Laws of
Owner, or result in any breach of or default under any contract, obligation, indenture or other instrument to which Owner is a party or by which Owner may be
bound; (xiii) Owner possesses, and will hereafter possess, all permits, consents, approvals, franchises and licenses required necessary to enable it to conduct
the business in which it is now engaged in compliance with all applicable law; (xiv) no consent, approval or authorization of, or declaration of filing with,
any governmental authority (including but not limited to, the Department of Insurance of the State of Arizona) is required to be obtained or made by Owner
or Borrower on or prior to the date hereof in connection with the due execution, delivery or performance by Owner of'its obligations hereunder, except for the
authorizations, approvals, consents, declarations and other filings (A) which have been duly obtained or made on or before the date hereof, which have not
been modified, rescinded or withdrawn as of the date hereof, or (B) that, by their nature, are required to be made or filed following the consummation of the
transactions contemplated herein; and (xv) as of the date hereof, Owner is solvent and, following the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein,
will continue to be solvent.

(b) Owner further represents and warrants to Bank that: (i) the Collateral pledged hereunder is so pledged at Borrower’s request; (ii) Bank has made no
representation to Owner as to the creditworthiness of Borrower; and (iii) Owner has established adequate means of obtaining from Borrower on a continuing
basis financial and other information pertaining to Borrower’ financial condition. Owner agrees to keep adequately informed from such means of any facts,
events or circumstances which might in any way affect Owner’s risks hereunder, and Owner further agrees that Bank shall have no obligation to disclose to
Owner any information or material about Borrower which is acquired by Bank in any manner.
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(c) Owner further represents and warrants to Bank that (i) each of the Insurance Policies is duly issued and as of the date hereof remains in full force and
effect, (ii) all premiums with respect to each of the Insurance Policies due to date have been paid in full, and (iii) no event has occurred or fact or circumstance
exists that, with the giving of notice or the passage of time or both, would constitute a basis on which Owner could terminate or cancel any of the Insurance
Policies.

7. COVENANTS OF OWNER.

(a) Owner agrees in general: (i) to indemnify Bank against all losses, claims, demands, liabilities and expenses of every kind caused by property subject
hereto; (ii) to permit Bank to exercise its powers; (iii) to execute and deliver such documents as Bank deems necessary to create, perfect and continue the
security interests contemplated hereby; (iv) not to change Owner’s name, and as applicable, its chief executive office, its principal residence or the
jurisdiction in which it is organized and/or registered without giving Bank prior written notice thereof; (v) not to change the places where Owner keeps any
Collateral or Owner’s records concerning the Collateral and Proceeds without giving Bank prior written notice of the address to which Owner is moving
same; and (vi) to cooperate with Bank in perfecting all security interests granted herein and in obtaining such agreements from third parties as Bank deems
necessary, proper or convenient in connection with the preservation, perfection or enforcement of any of its rights hereunder.

(b) Owner agrees with regard to the Collateral and Proceeds, unless Bank agrees otherwise in writing: (i) that Bank is authorized to file financing
statements in the name of Owner to perfect Bank’s security interest in Collateral and Proceeds; (ii) where applicable, to insure the Collateral with Bank named
as loss payee, in form, substance and amounts, under agreements, against risks and liabilities, and with insurance companies satisfactory to Bank; (iii) not to
permit any lien on the Collateral or Proceeds, except in favor of Bank; (iv) not to sell, hypothecate or otherwise dispose of, nor permit the transfer by
operation of law of, any of the Collateral or Proceeds or any interest therein, nor withdraw any funds from any deposit account pledged to Bank hereunder;
(v) to keep, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, complete and accurate records regarding all Collateral and Proceeds, and to permit
Bank to inspect the same and make copies thereof at any reasonable time; (vi) if requested by Bank, to receive and use reasonable diligence to Proceeds, in
trust and as the property of Bank, and to immediately endorse as appropriate and deliver Proceeds to Bank daily in the exact form in which they are received
together with a collection report in form satisfactory to Bank; (vii) not to commingle Collateral or Proceeds or collections thereunder with other property;
(viii) to give only normal allowances and credits and to advise Bank thereof immediately in writing if they affect any Collateral or Proceeds in any material
respect; (ix) on demand, to deliver to Bank returned property resulting from, or payment equal to, such allowances or credits on any Collateral or Proceeds or
to execute such documents and do such other things as Bank may reasonably request for the purpose of perfecting, preserving and enforcing its security
interest in such returned property; (x) from time to time, when requested by Bank, to prepare and deliver a schedule of all Collateral and Proceeds subject to
this Agreement and to assign in writing and deliver to Bank all accounts, contracts, instruments, documents and other evidences thereof; (xi) in the event
Bank elects to receive payments of Collateral or Proceeds hereunder, to pay all expenses incurred by Bank in connection therewith, including expenses of
accounting, correspondence, collection efforts, reporting to account or contract debtors, filing, recording,
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record keeping and expenses incidental thereto; and (xii) to provide any service and do any other acts which may be necessary to maintain, preserve and
protect all Collateral and, as appropriate and applicable, to deal with the Collateral in accordance with the standards and practices adhered to generally by
companies in Borrower’s line(s) of business, and to keep all Collateral and Proceeds free and clear of all defenses, rights of offset and counterclaims.

(c) Owner agrees that the principal balance of time deposit funds in the Accounts shall at all times be equal to or greater than One Hundred Fourteen
Million Three Hundred Thirty-Four Thousand Sixty Hundred Sixty and 20/100 Dollars (§114,334,660.20) (the “Minimum Collateral Value”). In the event
that the time deposit funds in the Accounts, for any reason and at any time is less than the Minimum Collateral Value, Owner shall promptly increase the
principal amount of the time deposit pledged hereunder in an amount sufficient to achieve the Minimum Collateral Value.

(d) Owner agrees to provide to Bank written notice of any cancellation or termination ofthe Insurance Policies at least thirty (30) days prior to
the effective date of any such cancellation or termination.

8. POWERS OF BANK. Owner appoints Bank its true attorney in fact to perform any of the following powers, which are coupled with an interest, are
irrevocable until termination of this Agreement and may be exercised from time to time by Bank’s officers and employees, or any of them, whether or not
Borrower or Owner is in default: (a) to perform any obligation of Owner hereunder in Owner’s name or otherwise; (b) to give notice to account debtors or
others of Bank’s rights in the Collateral and Proceeds, to enforce or forebear from enforcing the same and make extension or modification agreements with
respect thereto; (c) to release persons liable on the Collateral or Proceeds and to give receipts and acquittances and compromise disputes in connection
therewith; (d) to release or substitute security; (e) to resort to security in any order; (f) to prepare, execute, file, record or deliver notes, assignments, schedules,
designation statements, financing statements, continuation statements, termination statements, statements of assignment, applications for registration or like
papers to perfect, preserve or release Bank’s interest in the Collateral and Proceeds; (g) to receive, open and read mail addressed to Owner; (h) to take cash,
instruments for the payment of money and other property to which Bank is entitled; (i) to verify facts concemning the Collateral and Proceeds by inquiry of
obligors thereon, or otherwise, in its own name or a fictitious name; (j) to endorse, collect, deliver and receive payment under instruments for the payment of
money constituting or relating to Proceeds; (k) to prepare, adjust, execute, deliver and receive payment under insurance claims, and to collect and receive
payment of and endorse any instrument in payment of loss or returned premiums or any other insurance refund or return, and to apply such amounts received
by Bank, at Bank’s sole option, toward repayment of the Indebtedness or replacement of the Collateral; (1) to exercise all rights, powers and remedies which
Owner would have, but for this Agreement, with respect to all Collateral and Proceeds subject hereto; (m) to make withdrawals from and to close deposit
accounts or other accounts with any financial institution, wherever located, into which Proceeds may have been deposited, and to apply funds so withdrawn
to payment of the Indebtedness; (n) to preserve or release the interest evidenced by chattel paper to which Bank is entitled hereunder and to endorse and
deliver any evidence oftitle incidental thereto; and (o) to do all acts and things and execute all documents in the name of Owner or otherwise, deemed by
Bank as necessary, proper and convenient in connection with the preservation, perfection or enforcement of its rights hereunder.
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9. OWNER’S WAIVERS.

(a) Owner waives any right to require Bank to: (i) proceed against Borrower or any other person; (ii) marshal assets or proceed against or exhaust any
security held from Borrower or any other person; (iii) give notice of the terms, time and place of any public or private sale or other disposition of personal
property security held from Borrower or any other person; (iv) take any other action or pursue any other remedy in Bank’s power; or (v) make any
presentment or demand for performance, or give any notice of nonperformance, protest, notice of protest or notice of dishonor hereunder or in connection
with any obligations or evidences of indebtedness held by Bank as security for or which constitute in whole or in part the Indebtedness secured hereunder, or
in connection with the creation of new or additional Indebtedness.

(b) Owner waives any defense to its obligations hereunder based upon or arising by reason of: (i) any disability or other defense of Borrower or any
other person; (ii) the cessation or limitation from any cause whatsoever, other than payment in full, of the Indebtedness of Borrower or any other person;
(iii) any lack of authority of any officer, director, partner, agent or any other person acting or purporting to act on behalf of Borrower which is a corporation,
partnership or other type of entity, or any defect in the formation of any such Borrower; (iv) the application by Borrower of the proceeds of any Indebtedness
for purposes other than the purposes represented by Borrower to, or intended or understood by, Bank or Owner; (v) any act or omission by Bank which
directly or indirectly results in or aids the discharge of Borrower or any portion of the Indebtedness by operation of law or otherwise, or which in any way
impairs or suspends any rights or remedies of Bank against Borrower; (vi) any impairment of the value of any interest in security for the Indebtedness or any
portion thereof, including without limitation, the failure to obtain or maintain perfection or recordation of any interest in any such security, the release of any
such security without substitution, and/or the failure to preserve the value of, or to comply with applicable law in disposing of, any such security; (vii) any
modification of the Indebtedness, in any form whatsoever, including any modification made after revocation hereof to any Indebtedness incurred prior to
such revocation, and including without limitation the renewal, extension, acceleration or other change in time for payment of, or other change in the terms of,
the Indebtedness or any portion thereof, including increase or decrease of the rate of interest thereon; or (viii) any requirement that Bank give any notice of
acceptance of this Agreement. Until all Indebtedness shall have been paid in full, Owner shall have no right of subrogation, and Owner waives any right to
enforce any remedy which Bank now has or may hereafter have against Borrower or any other person and waives any benefit of, or any right to participate in,
any security now or hereafter held by Bank. Owner further waives all rights and defenses Owner may have arising out of (A) any election of remedies by Bank,
even though that election of remedies, such as a non-judicial foreclosure with respect to any security for any portion of the Indebtedness, destroys Owner’s
rights of subrogation or Owner’s rights to proceed against Borrower for reimbursement, or (B) any loss of rights Owner may suffer by reason of any rights,
powers or remedies of Borrower in connection with any anti-deficiency laws or any other laws limiting, qualifying or discharging Borrower’s Indebtedness,
whether by operation of law or otherwise, including any rights Owner may have to a fair market value hearing to determine the size of a deficiency following
any foreclosure sale or other disposition of any real property security for any portion of the Indebtedness.

10. AUTHORIZATIONS TO BANK. Owner authorizes Bank either before or after revocation hereof, without notice to or demand on Owner, and
without affecting Owner’s liability hereunder, from time to time to: (a) alter, compromise, renew, extend, accelerate or otherwise change the time for payment
of, or otherwise change the terms of, the Indebtedness or any portion thereof, including increase or decrease of the rate of interest thereon; (b) take and hold
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security, other than the Collateral and Proceeds, for the payment of the Indebtedness or any portion thereof, and exchange, enforce, waive, subordinate or
release the Collateral and Proceeds, or any part thereof, or any such other security; (c) apply the Collateral and Proceeds or such other security and direct the
order or manner of sale thereof, including without limitation, a non-judicial sale permitted by the terms of the controlling security agreement, mortgage or
deed of'trust, as Bank in its discretion may determine; (d) release or substitute any one or more of the endorsers or guarantors of the Indebtedness, or any
portion thereof, or any other party thereto; and (e) apply payments received by Bank from Borrower to any Indebtedness of Borrower to Bank, in such order as
Bank shall determine in its sole discretion, whether or not such Indebtedness is covered by this Agreement, and Owner hereby waives any provision of law
regarding application of payments which specifies otherwise. Bank may without notice assign this Agreement in whole or in part.

11. PAYMENT OF PREMIUMS, TAXES, CHARGES, LIENS AND ASSESSMENTS. Owner agrees to pay, prior to delinquency, all insurance premiums,
taxes, charges, liens and assessments against the Collateral and Proceeds, and upon the failure of Owner to do so, Bank at its option may pay any of them and
shall be the sole judge of the legality or validity thereof and the amount necessary to discharge the same. Any such payments made by Bank shall be
obligations of Owner to Bank, due and payable immediately upon demand, together with interest at a rate determined in accordance with the provisions of
this Agreement, and shall be secured by the Collateral and Proceeds, subject to all terms and conditions of this Agreement.

12. EVENTS OF DEFAULT. The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute an “Event of Default” under this Agreement: (a) any default in the
payment or performance of any obligation, or any defined event of default, under (i) any contract or instrument evidencing any Indebtedness, or (ii) any other
agreement between Borrower and Bank, including without limitation any loan agreement, relating to or executed in connection with any Indebtedness;

(b) any representation or warranty made by Owner herein shall prove to be incorrect in any material respect when made; (c) Owner shall fail to observe or
perform any obligation or agreement contained herein; (d) any impairment of the rights of Bank in any Collateral or Proceeds, or any attachment or like levy
on any property of Owner; and (e) Bank, in good faith, believes any or all of the Collateral and/or Proceeds to be in danger of misuse, dissipation,
commingling, loss, theft, damage or destruction, or otherwise in jeopardy or unsatisfactory in character or value.

13. REMEDIES. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, Bank shall have and may exercise without demand any and all rights, powers, privileges
and remedies granted to a secured party upon default under the Oregon Uniform Commercial Code or otherwise provided by law, including without
limitation, the right (a) to contact all persons obligated to Owner on any Collateral or Proceeds and to instruct such persons to deliver all Collateral and/or
Proceeds directly to Bank, and (b) to sell, lease, license or otherwise dispose of any or all Collateral. All rights, powers, privileges and remedies of Bank shall
be cumulative. No delay, failure or discontinuance of Bank in exercising any right, power, privilege or remedy hereunder shall affect or operate as a waiver of
such right, power, privilege or remedy; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, power, privilege or remedy preclude, waive or otherwise
affect any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, privilege or remedy. Any waiver, permit, consent or approval of any kind
by Bank of any default hereunder, or any such waiver of any provisions or conditions hereof, must be in writing and shall be effective only to the extent set
forth in writing. It is agreed that public or private sales or other dispositions, for cash or on credit, to a wholesaler or retailer or investor, or user of property of
the types subject to this Agreement, or public auctions, are all commercially reasonable since differences in the
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prices generally realized in the different kinds of dispositions are ordinarily offset by the differences in the costs and credit risks of such dispositions. While
an Event of Default exists: (a) Owner will deliver to Bank from time to time, as requested by Bank, current lists of all Collateral and Proceeds; (b) Owner will
not dispose of any Collateral or Proceeds except on terms approved by Bank; (c) Bank may, at any time and at Bank’s sole option, liquidate any time
deposits pledged to Bank hereunder and apply the Proceeds thereof to payment of the Indebtedness, whether or not said time deposits have matured and
notwithstanding the fact that such liquidation may give rise to penalties for early withdrawal of funds; and (d) at Bank’s request, Owner will assemble and
deliver all Collateral and Proceeds, and books and records pertaining thereto, to Bank at a reasonably convenient place designated by Bank. Owner further
agrees that Bank shall have no obligation to process or prepare any Collateral for sale or other disposition.

14. DISPOSITION OF COLLATERAL AND PROCEEDS; TRANSFER OF INDEBTEDNESS. In disposing of Collateral hereunder, Bank may disclaim
all warranties of title, possession, quiet enjoyment and the like. Any proceeds of any disposition of any Collateral or Proceeds, or any part thereof, may be
applied by Bank to the payment of expenses incurred by Bank in connection with the foregoing, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, and the balance of
such proceeds may be applied by Bank toward the payment of the Indebtedness in such order of application as Bank may from time to time elect. Upon the
transfer of all or any part of the Indebtedness, Bank may transfer all or any part of the Collateral or Proceeds and shall be fully discharged thereafter from all
liability and responsibility with respect to any of the foregoing so transferred, and the transferee shall be vested with all rights and powers of Bank hereunder
with respect to any of the foregoing so transferred; but with respect to any Collateral or Proceeds not so transferred, Bank shall retain all rights, powers,
privileges and remedies herein given.

15. NOTICES. All notices, requests and demands required under this Agreement must be in writing, addressed to Bank at the address specified in
Section 2 hereofand to Owner at the address of its chief executive office (or principal residence, if applicable) specified below or to such other address as any
party may designate by written notice to each other party, and shall be deemed to have been given or made as follows: (a) if personally delivered, upon
delivery; (b) if sent by mail, upon the earlier of the date of receipt or three (3) days after deposit in the U.S. mail, first class and postage prepaid; and (c) if sent
by telecopy, upon receipt.

16. COSTS, EXPENSES AND ATTORNEYS’ FEES. Owner shall pay to Bank immediately upon demand the full amount of all payments, advances,
charges, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees (to include outside counsel fees and all allocated costs of Bank’s in-house counsel),
expended or incurred by Bank in connection with (a) the perfection and preservation of the Collateral or Bank’s interest therein, and (b) the realization,
enforcement and exercise of any right, power, privilege or remedy conferred by this Agreement, whether incurred at the trial or appellate level, in an
arbitration proceeding or otherwise, and including any of'the foregoing incurred in connection with any bankruptcy proceeding (including without
limitation, any adversary proceeding, contested matter or motion brought by Bank or any other person) relating to Owner or in any way affecting any of the
Collateral or Bank’s ability to exercise any of'its rights or remedies with respect thereto. All of the foregoing shall be paid by Owner with interest from the
date of demand until paid in full at a rate per annum equal to the greater of ten percent (10%) or Bank’s Prime Rate in effect from time to time.
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17. SUCCESSORS; ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, legal
representatives, successors and assigns of the parties; provided however, that Owner may not assign or transfer any of its interests or rights hereunder without
Bank’s prior written consent. Owner acknowledges that Bank has the right to sell, assign, transfer, negotiate or grant participations in all or any part of, or any
interest in, any Indebtedness of Borrower to Bank and any obligations with respect thereto, including this Agreement. In connection therewith, Bank may
disclose all documents and information which Bank now has or hereafter acquires relating to Owner and/or this Agreement, whether furnished by Borrower,
Owner or otherwise. Owner further agrees that Bank may disclose such documents and information to Borrower.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended or modified only in writing signed by Bank and Owner.

19. APPLICATION OF SINGULAR AND PLURAL. In all cases where there is but a single Borrower, then all words used herein in the plural shall be
deemed to have been used in the singular where the context and construction so require; and when there is more than one Borrower named herein or when
this Agreement is executed by more than one Owner, the word “Borrower” and the word “Owner” respectively shall mean all or any one or more of them as
the context requires.

20. SEVERABILITY OF PROVISIONS. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such
provision shall be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provision or any remaining
provisions of this Agreement.

21. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon.
22. ARBITRATION.

(a) Arbitration. The parties hereto agree, upon demand by any party, to submit to binding arbitration all claims, disputes and controversies between or
among them (and their respective employees, officers, directors, attorneys, and other agents), whether in tort, contract or otherwise in any way arising out of or
relating to in any way (i) the loan and related loan and security documents which are the subject of this Agreement and its negotiation, execution,
collateralization, administration, repayment, modification, extension, substitution, formation, inducement, enforcement, default or termination. In the event
of'a court ordered arbitration, the party requesting arbitration shall be responsible for timely filing the demand for arbitration and paying the appropriate
filing fee within 30 days of the abatement order or the time specified by the court. Failure to timely file the demand for arbitration as ordered by the court will
result in that party’s right to demand arbitration being automatically terminated.

(b) Governing Rules. Any arbitration proceeding will (i) proceed in a location in Oregon selected by the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”);
(i1) be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act (Title 9 of the United States Code), notwithstanding any conflicting choice of law provision in any of the
documents between the parties; and (iii) be conducted by the AAA, or such other administrator as the parties shall mutually agree upon, in accordance with
the AAA’s commercial dispute resolution procedures, unless the claim or counterclaim is at least $1,000,000.00 exclusive of claimed interest, arbitration fees
and costs in which case the arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the AAA’s optional procedures for large,
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complex commercial disputes (the commercial dispute resolution procedures or the optional procedures for large, complex commercial disputes to be referred
to herein, as applicable, as the “Rules”). If there is any inconsistency between the terms hereof and the Rules, the terms and procedures set forth herein shall
control. Any party who fails or refuses to submit to arbitration following a demand by any other party shall bear all costs and expenses incurred by such other
party in compelling arbitration of any dispute. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a waiver by any party that is a bank of the protections
afforded to it under 12 U.S.C. §91 or any similar applicable state law.

(c) No Waiver of Provisional Remedies, Self-Help and Foreclosure. The arbitration requirement does not limit the right of any party to (i) foreclose
against real or personal property collateral; (ii) exercise self-help remedies relating to collateral or proceeds of collateral such as setoff or repossession; or
(iii) obtain provisional or ancillary remedies such as replevin, injunctive relief, attachment or the appointment of a receiver, before during or after the
pendency of any arbitration proceeding. This exclusion does not constitute a waiver of the right or obligation of any party to submit any dispute to
arbitration or reference hereunder, including those arising from the exercise of the actions detailed in sections (i), (ii) and (iii) of this paragraph.

(d) Arbitrator Qualifications and Powers. Any arbitration proceeding in which the amount in controversy is $5,000,000.00 or less will be decided by a
single arbitrator selected according to the Rules, and who shall not render an award of greater than $5,000,000.00. Any dispute in which the amount in
controversy exceeds $5,000,000.00 shall be decided by majority vote of a panel of three arbitrators; provided however, that all three arbitrators must actively
participate in all hearings and deliberations. The arbitrator will be a neutral attorney licensed in the State of Oregon or a neutral retired judge of the state or
federal judiciary of Oregon, in either case with a minimum of ten years experience in the substantive law applicable to the subject matter of the dispute to be
arbitrated. The arbitrator will determine whether or not an issue is arbitratable and will give effect to the statutes of limitation in determining any claim. In
any arbitration proceeding the arbitrator will decide (by documents only or with a hearing at the arbitrator’s discretion) any pre-hearing motions which are
similar to motions to dismiss for failure to state a claim or motions for summary adjudication. The arbitrator shall resolve all disputes in accordance with the
substantive law of Oregon and may grant any remedy or relief that a court of such state could order or grant within the scope hereof and such ancillary relief
as is necessary to make effective any award. The arbitrator shall also have the power to award recovery of all costs and fees, to impose sanctions and to take
such other action as the arbitrator deems necessary to the same extent a judge could pursuant to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the Oregon Rules of
Civil Procedure or other applicable law. Judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. The institution
and maintenance of an action for judicial relief or pursuit of a provisional or ancillary remedy shall not constitute a waiver of the right of any party, including
the plaintiff, to submit the controversy or claim to arbitration if any other party contests such action for judicial relief.

(e) Discovery. In any arbitration proceeding, discovery will be permitted in accordance with the Rules. All discovery shall be expressly limited to
matters directly relevant to the dispute being arbitrated and must be completed no later than 20 days before the hearing date. Any requests for an extension of
the discovery periods, or any discovery disputes, will be subject to final determination by the arbitrator upon a showing that the request for discovery is
essential for the party’s presentation and that no alternative means for obtaining information is available.
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(f) Class Proceedings and Consolidations. No party hereto shall be entitled to join or consolidate disputes by or against others in any arbitration,
except parties who have executed this Agreement or any other contract, instrument or document relating to any Indebtedness, or to include in any arbitration
any dispute as a representative or member of a class, or to act in any arbitration in the interest of the general public or in a private attorney general capacity.

(g) Payment Of Arbitration Costs And Fees. The arbitrator shall award all costs and expenses of the arbitration proceeding.

(h) Miscellaneous. To the maximum extent practicable, the AAA, the arbitrators and the parties shall take all action required to conclude any
arbitration proceeding within 180 days of the filing of the dispute with the AAA. No arbitrator or other party to an arbitration proceeding may disclose the
existence, content or results thereof, except for disclosures of information by a party required in the ordinary course of'its business or by applicable law or
regulation. If more than one agreement for arbitration by or between the parties potentially applies to a dispute, the arbitration provision most directly related
to the documents between the parties or the subject matter of the dispute shall control. This arbitration provision shall survive termination, amendment or
expiration of any of the documents or any relationship between the parties.

(i) Small Claims Court. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, each party retains the right to pursue in Small Claims Court any dispute
within that court’s jurisdiction. Further, this arbitration provision shall apply only to disputes in which either party seeks to recover an amount of money
(excluding attorneys’ fees and costs) that exceeds the jurisdictional limit of the Small Claims Court.

Owner warrants that Owner is an organization registered under the laws of the State of Arizona.

Owner warrants that its chief executive office (or principal residence, if applicable) is located at the following address: 2999 N 44th Street, Suite 500,
Arizona 85018, ¢/o Low & Cohen PLLC.

UNDER OREGON LAW, MOST AGREEMENTS, PROMISES AND COMMITMENTS MADE BY BANK CONCERNING LOANS AND OTHER
CREDIT EXTENSIONS WHICH ARE NOT FOR PERSONAL., FAMILY OR HOUSEHOLD PURPOSES OR SECURED SOLELY BY THE
BORROWER’S RESIDENCE MUST BE IN WRITING., EXPRESS CONSIDERATION AND BE SIGNED BY BANK TO BE ENFORCEABLE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed as of the date first written above.

ASSOCIATED INSURANCE COMPANY FOR EXCESS

By:
Name: James D. Miller
Title:  Vice President
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SUBSIDIARIES OF BARRETT BUSINESS SERVICES, INC.

AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

Subsidiary

Jurisdiction of Formation

EXHIBIT 21

Associated Insurance Company for Excess Arizona
Ecole Insurance Company Arizona
BBS I, LLC Oregon



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-33487, 333-105833, and 333-161592) of our
report dated March 16, 2015 relating to the consolidated financial statements of Barrett Business Services, Inc., and the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting of Barrett Business Services, Inc. appearing in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31,
2014.

/sl Moss Adams LLP
Portland, Oregon

March 16, 2015



CERTIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT 31.1

I, Michael L. Elich, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Barrett Business Services, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report, based on such
evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most-
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 16, 2015 /s/ Michael L. Elich

Michael L. Elich
Chief Executive Officer



CERTIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT 31.2

I, James D. Miller, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Barrett Business Services, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual
report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report, based on such
evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most-
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 16, 2015 /s/ James D. Miller

James D. Miller
Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Annual Report of Barrett Business Services, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s/ Michael L. Elich /sl James D. Miller
Michael L. Elich James D. Miller

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
March 16, 2015 March 16, 2015

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Barrett Business Services, Inc. and will be retained by
Barrett Business Services, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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